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I NTRODUCTI ON

Portrush Petroleum Corporation was organized under the laws of British
Col unbi a, Canada. In this Annual Report, the “Conpany”, “we”, “our and “us”
refer to Portrush Petroleum Corporation (unless the context otherw se
requires). Summary discussions of docunents referred to in this Annual Report
may not be conplete and we refer you to the actual docunents for nore conplete
i nfornmation. Qur principal corporate offices are located at 1687 West
Br oadway #200, Vancouver, British Colunbia, Canada V6J 1X2. Qur tel ephone
nunmber is 604-696- 2555.

BUSI NESS OF PORTRUSH PETROLEUM CORPORATI ON
The Conmpany is in the business of acquiring, exploring, and devel opi ng (when
appropriate) oil/gas properties. The Conpany nmintains: a 22.5% working
interest in the Lenox Prospects, a producing oil/gas property in M chigan; and
a 10% working interest (7.5% net revenue interest) in the Mssion River
Devel opnent Project, a producing oil/gas property in Texas.

FI NANCI AL AND OTHER | NFORNMATI ON
In this Annual Report, unless otherw se specified, all dollar anounts are
expressed in Canadian Dollars (“CDN$”" or “$"). The Governnment of Canada
permts a floating exchange rate to determ ne the value of the Canadian Dol | ar
against the U S. Dollar (USS$).

FORWARD- LOOKI NG STATEMENTS
This  Annual Report on Form 20-F contains forward-Iooking statenents

principally in |ITEM #4, “Information on the Conpany” and |TEM #5,
“Managenment’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Qper ations”. These statenents may be identified by the use of words I|ike
“plan”, “expect”, “ainf, “believe”, “project”, “anticipate”, “intend”,
“estimate”, “will”, “should”, “could” and similar expressions in connection
with any discussion, expectation, or projection of future operating or
financial perfornmance, events or trends. In particular, these include

statenments about the Conpany’'s strategy for growh, property exploration,
m neral prices, future performance or results of current or anticipated
m neral production, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and the outcone of
contingenci es, such as acquisitions and/or |egal proceedings.

Forwar d- | ooki ng statenents are based on certain assunptions and expectations
of future events that are subject to risks and uncertainties. Actual future
results and trends may differ materially from historical results or those
projected in any such forward-looking statenents depending on a variety of
factors, including, anong other things, the factors discussed in this Annual
Report under | TEM #3, “Key Information, R sk Factors” and factors described in
docunents that we may furnish fromtine to tinme to the Securities and Exchange
Conmi ssi on. We undertake no obligation to update publicly or revise any
forward-1ooking statements because of new information, future events or
ot herw se.



PART |

ITEM 1. IDENTITY OF DI RECTORS, SENI OR MANAGEMENT AND ADVI SORS.
--- No Disclosure Necessary ---

| TEM 2. COFFER STATI STI CS AND EXPECTED TI METABLE.
--- No Disclosure Necessary ---

I TEM 3. KEY | NFORMATI ON.

3.A.1. Selected Financial Data

3.A.2. Selected Financial Data

The selected financial data of the Conpany for years ended Decenber 3lst
2006/ 2005/ 2004 was derived from the financial statenments of the Conpany that
have been audited by Davidson & Conpany LLP, independent Chartered
Accountants, as indicated in their audit report which is included el sewhere in
this Registration Statenent. The selected financial data of the Conpany for
Fi scal 2003/2002 ended Decenber 31st was derived from audited financial
statenents of the Conpany, not included herein.

The financial statenents are the responsibility of the Conpany’s nmanagenent.
The auditor’s responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial
statenents based on their audit.

The auditor’s conducted their audits in accordance w th Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards and the standards of the Public Conpany Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that the auditor plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material msstatenent. An audit includes
exam ning, on a test basis, evidence supporting the anmounts and disclosures in
the financial statenents. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates nmde by nanagenent, as well as
eval uating the overall financial statenment presentation. The auditor’s report
states that they believe that their audits provided a reasonable basis for
t hei r opi ni on.

The selected financial data should be read in conjunction with the financial
statements and other financial information included elsewhere in the
Regi stration Statenent.

The Conpany has not declared any dividends since incorporation and does not
anticipate that it will do so in the foreseeable future. The present policy
of the Conpany is to retain all available funds for use in its operations and
t he expansi on of its business.

The following table is derived fromthe financial statenents of the Conpany,
whi ch have been prepared in accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP). Al material nunerical differences between
Canadi an GAAP and United States GAAP (US GAAP), as applicable to the Conpany,
are described in footnotes to the financial statenents.

Al per-share figures and nunber of shares are adjusted for the one-for-five
stock consolidation effective March 2000.



Table No. 1
Sel ected Financial Data
(CDN$ in 000, except per share data)

Year Year Year Year

Year

Ended Ended Ended Ended Ended
12/ 31/ 2006 12/31/2005 12/31/2004 12/31/2003 12/31/

2002

Canadi an GAAP

Net Revenue $777 $594 $442 $415 $303
Qperating Incomre (Loss) ($431) ($153) ($693) ($651) ($382)
Net | ncone (Loss) ($435) ($160) ($766) ($747) ($1750)
(Loss) per Share ($0.01) ($0.01) ($0.02) ($0.03) (%0. 10)
Di vi dends Per Share $0. 00 $0. 00 $0. 00 $0. 00 $0. 00
Wd. Avg. Shares (000) 43938 41573 33859 22236 17767
Peri od-end Shares O'S (000) 43759 43434 40342 26694 20061
Wor ki ng Capi t al $143 $158 ($287) ($307) ($575)
O/ Gas Properties 1348 1571 1642 174 376
Long- Term Obl i gati ons 10 10 6 6 168
Capi tal Stock 13508 13399 12854 10534 9956
Shar ehol ders’ Equity 1542 1718 1349 (140) (367)
Total Assets 1611 1834 1790 183 397
US GAAP
Loss Per Share ($0.01) ($0. 00) ($0.02)
Wd. Avg. Shares (000) 43951 41476 33756
(1) Cunulative Net Loss since incorporation under US GAAP to 12/31/2006

was ($13, 212, 435).
(2) Under US GAAP, the calcul ation of weighted average nunber of shares used

in the calculation of Loss Per Share would not have included 103, 125

escrowed, contingently cancel abl e conmon shares. The rel ease of such

shares fromescrow will result in conpensation to be recorded reflecting

the difference between the issue price of the shares ($0.175 per share)

and the nmarket price at the date of release. On 12/7/2005, the escrowed

shares were cancel | ed.
(3) Under US GAAP, a cal culation of cunulative non-cash conmpensati on expense

relating to the granting of stock options, non-recogni zed under
Canadi an GAAP was $759, 296 and $759, 296 at 12/31/2006 and 12/ 31/ 2005.




3.A.3. Exchange Rates
In this Annual Report Statenent, unless otherwise specified, all dollar

amounts are expressed in Canadian Dollars (CDNS$). The Governnent of Canada
permts a floating exchange rate to determ ne the value of the Canadian Dol | ar
against the U S. Dollar (USS$).

The following table sets forth the rate of exchange for the Canadi an Dol | ar at
the end of the five nobst recent fiscal periods ended Decenber 31st, the
average rates for the period, and the range of high and low rates for the
period. The data for each nmonth during the previous six nonths is also
provi ded.

For purposes of this table, the rate of exchange neans the noon buying rate in
New York City for cable transfers in foreign currencies as certified for
custons purposes by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York. The table sets
forth the nunmber of Canadian Dollars required under that fornmula to buy one
U.S. Dollar. The average rate neans the average of the exchange rates on the
| ast day of each month during the period.

Tabl e No. 2
U.S. Dol |l ar/ Canadi an Dol | ar

Aver age Hi gh Low Cl ose
May 2007 1.11 1.07 1.07
April 2007 1.16 1.11 1.11
March 2007 1.18 1.15 1.15
February 2007 1.19 1.16 1.17
January 2007 1.18 1.16 1.18
Decenber 2006 1.16 1.14 1.16
Novenber 2006 1.15 1.13 1.14
Fi scal Year Ended 12/31/2006 1.13 1.18 1.11 1.16
Fi scal Year Ended 12/31/2005 1.21 1.27 1.16 1.17
Fi scal Year Ended 12/31/2004 1.30 1.40 1.18 1.20
Fi scal Year Ended 12/31/2003 1.38 1.57 1.29 1.29
Fi scal Year Ended 12/31/2002 1.57 1.61 1.51 1.58
3 Capitalization and | ndebtedness No Di scl osure Necessary ---

. B.
3.C. Reasons For The Ofer And Use O Proceeds No Di scl osure Necessary ---




3.D. Risk Factors

In addition to the other information presented in this Annual report, the
followi ng should be considered carefully in evaluating the Conpany and its
busi ness. This Annual Report contains forward-I|ooking statenents that involve
risks and uncertainties. The Conpany's actual results may differ materially
from the results discussed in the forward-looking statenents. Factors that
m ght cause such a difference include those discussed bel ow and el sewhere in
this Annual Report.

Cor por ate Ri sks

nvestors nmay be disadvantaged because the Conpany is incorporated in Canada,
whi ch has different | aws

The articles/by-laws and the | aws of Canada are different fromthose typical in
the United States. The typical rights of investors in Canadian conpanies
differ nodestly fromthose in the United States; refer to the rel evant sections
which are discussed in Section 9.A 5 and Section 10.B of this Annual Report.
Such di fferences nmay cause investors legal difficulties.

U.S. investors nmay not be able to enforce their civil liabilities against the
Conpany or its directors, controlling persons and officers

It may be difficult to bring and enforce suits against the Conpany. The
Conpany is a corporation incorporated under the laws of the British Col unbia,
Canada. A mpjority of the Conmpany's directors are resident outside the United
States, and all or substantial portions of their assets are |ocated outside of
the United States. As a result, it may be difficult for US. holders of the
Conpany’s comon shares to effect service of process on these persons wthin
the United States or to realize in the United States upon judgnents rendered
against them In addition, a sharehol der should not assunme that the courts of
Canada (i) would enforce judgnents of U S. courts obtained in actions against
the Conpany or such persons predicated upon the civil liability provisions of
the U S. federal securities laws or other laws of the United States, or (ii)
woul d enforce, in original actions, liabilities against us or such persons
predi cated upon the U S. federal securities laws or other laws of the United
St ates.

As a “foreign private issuer”, the Conpany is exenpt fromthe Section 14 proxy
rules and Section 16 of the 1934 Securities Act

The subm ssion of proxy and annual neeting of sharehol der information (prepared
to Canadian standards) on Form 6-K may result in shareholders having |ess
conplete and tinely data. The exenption from Section 16 rules regarding sal es
of common shares by insiders may result in sharehol ders having | ess data.

Passive Foreign Investnent Conpany (“PFIC') designation could lead to an
adverse tax situation for U S. investors

U S. investors in the Conpany could be subject to U S. taxation at possibly
adverse or higher rates and under a system that mght be nore conplicated and
unfamliar to them For exanple, a U 'S investor mght be subject to special
tax rules with respect to any “excess distribution” received and any gain
realized froma sale or other disposition (including a pledge) of that holder's
shares. Distributions a U S. investor receives in a taxable year that are
greater than 125% of the average annual distributions received during the
shorter of the three preceding taxable years or the holder's holding period for
the shares will be treated as excess distributions. For exanple, under certain
circunstances, a US. investor who is an individual night be subject to
infornmation reporting requirenments and backup wi thholding, currently at a 28%
rate, on dividends received on common shares. |If a U S. Holder holds shares in
any year in which the Conpany is a PFIC, that holder mght be required to file
I nternal Revenue Service Form 8621. Refer to | TEM #10. E.




Ri sks Related to the Conpany’'s G|/ Gas Operations

Conpetition

Ol and gas exploration is intensely conpetitive and involves a high degree of
risk. There can be no assurance that commercial production of hydrocarbons
can be obtained from any of the Conpany's properties, nor are there any
assurances that production, if obtained, will be in sufficient quantities to
be profitable. In its efforts to acquire properties, the Conpany conpetes
wi th other conpanies that have significantly greater resources. Mny of these
conpanies not only explore for and produce oil and gas, but also conduct
refining and petrol eum narketing operations on a worldwi de basis. Conpetition
for producing properties will be affected by the anbunt of funds available to
the Conpany, information available to the Conpany and any standards
established by the Conpany for the mninmm projected return on investnent
Conpetition nay al so be presented by alternative fuel sources.

Ri sks Associated with G| and Gas Expl oration

There can be no assurance that the Conpany will recover comercial quantities
of hydrocarbons in the future. The marketability of any oil and gas acquired
or discovered will be affected by nunerous factors beyond the control of the

Conpany. These factors include market fluctuations, proxinmty and capacity of
oil and gas pipelines and processing equipnent and governnent regulations
(including regulations relating to royalties, allowable production, inporting

and exporting of oil and gas, and environmental protection). In addition
hazards such as unusual or unexpected fornations, pressures or other
conditions are involved in drilling and operating wells.

Envi ronnmental Regul ati on

Hazards incident to the exploration and devel opnent of oil and gas properties
such as accidental spills or |eakage of petroleumliquids and ot her unforeseen
conditions may be encountered by the Conpany. The Conpany nay be subject to
liability for pollution and other damages due to hazards that cannot be
insured against due to prohibitive premum costs or for other reasons.
Governmental regulations relating to environnmental matters could al so increase
t he cost of doing business or require alteration or cessation of operations in
certain areas.

Existing and possible future environnental |legislation, regulations and
actions could give rise to additional expense, capital expenditures,
restrictions and delays in the activities of the Conpany, the extent of which
cannot be predicted. Regulatory requirenents and environnmental standards are
subj ect to constant evaluation and nay be significantly increased, which could
materially and adversely affect the business of the Conpany or its ability to
develop its properties on an econonically feasible basis. Before devel opnent
and production can comence on any properties, the Conpany nust obtain
regul atory and environnmental approvals. There is no assurance that such
approvals will be obtained on a tinely basis or at all. The cost of
conpliance with changes in governnental regulations has the potential to
reduce the profitability of operations or preclude entirely the economc
devel opnent of a property.

Fluctuation in G| and Gas Prices

As with npst other conpanies involved in resource exploration, the Conpany may
be adversely affected by future increases in the costs of conducting
expl oration, devel opment and resource extraction that may not be fully offset
by increases in the price received on sale of the petrol eumor natural gas.




Volatility of Ol and Gas Prices

The Conpany’s revenues, profitability and future growmh and the carrying val ue
of its oil and gas properties are substantially dependent on prevailing prices
of oil and gas. The Conpany’s ability to borrow and to obtain additional
capital on attractive terns is also substantially dependent upon oil and gas
prices. Prices for oil and gas are subject to large fluctuations in response
to relatively mnor changes in the supply of and demand for oil and gas

mar ket uncertainty and a variety of additional factors beyond the control of
the Conmpany. These factors include economc conditions in the United States
and Canada, the actions of the Organization of Petrol eum Exporting Countries,
governmental regulation, political stability in the Mddl e East and el sewhere,
the foreign supply of oil and gas, the price of foreign inports and the
availability of alternative fuel sources.

Any substantial and extended decline in the price of oil and gas would have an
adverse effect on the Conpany’'s carrying value of its proved reserves,
borrowi ng capacity, revenues, profitability and cash flows from operations.

Vol atile oil and gas prices nmake it difficult to estimate the value of
produci ng properties for acquisition and often cause disruption in the market
for oil and gas producing properties, as buyers and sellers have difficulty
agreei ng on such val ue. Price volatility also makes it difficult to budget
for and project the return on acquisitions and devel opnment and exploitation
proj ects.

Ri sks Relating to Financial Condition

Goi ng concern assunption used by nanagenent highlights doubts on the Conpany’s
ability to successfully continue

The Conpany’'s financial statenments include a statenent that the financial
statenments of the Conpany are prepared on a going concern basis, and therefore
that certain reported carrying values are subject to the Conpany receiving the
future continued support of its stockhol ders, obtaining additional financing
and generating revenues to cover its operating costs. The going concern
assunption is only appropriate provided that additional financing continues to
becone avail abl e.

The Conpany’s History of Operating Losses is likely to continue leading to
need for additional potentially unavailable financings and rel ated probl ens
The Conpany has a history of |osses: ($435,117), ($160,248) and ($766,320) in
Fi scal Years 2006/ 2005/ 2004. Despite recent capital infusions, the Conpany
will require significant additional funding to neet its business objectives
Capital may need to be available to help maintain and to expand work on the
Conpany’s principal exploration/devel opnent property. The Conpany nay not be
able to obtain additional financing on reasonable terns, or at all. [If equity
financing is required, then such financings could result in significant
dilution to existing sharehol ders. If the Conpany is unable to obtain
sufficient fi nanci ng, the Conmpany m ght have to dramatically slow
expl oration/ devel opment efforts and/or lose control of its projects. The
Conpany has historically obtained the preponderance of its financing through
the issuance of equity. There are 100 mllion conmon shares authorized; and
t he Conpany has no current plans to obtain financing through nmeans other than
equity financing and/or |oans. Such losses and the resulting need for
external financings could result in |osses of investnment val ue.




The Conpany’ s Need for Addi ti onal Fi nanci ng to Fi ni sh Property
Expl oration/Devel opnment could lead to the Conpany’'s inability to finish
proposed property exploitation and/or |oss of properties

The Conpany is engaged in the business of exploiting oil/gas properties. The
Conpany believes it may have insufficient funds to undertake its planned
operations and exploration projects during Fiscal 2007; additional financing
will be required to continue exploration and to develop the oil/gas properties
identified and to place new wells into commercial production. The exploitation
of the Conpany’s oil/gas properties is, therefore, dependent upon the Conpany’s
ability to obtain financing through the | ease of assets, debt financing, equity
financing or other nmeans. Failure to obtain such financing may result in del ay
or indefinite postponenent of work on the Conpany’s oil/gas properties, as well
as the possible |loss of such properties. Such del ays, and possible inability
to proceed with planned operations could cause | oss of investnent val ue.

The Conpany conpetes with other oil/gas conpanies which have sinilar
operations, and nmany such conpetitor conpanies have operations and financia
resources and industry experience far greater than those of the Conpany.
Nevert hel ess, the market for the Conpany's potential future production of
oil/gas tends to be commpdity-oriented rather than conpany-oriented. If a
wel | successfully reaches commercial production, the Conpany wll still be
subject to conpetition from nuch |arger and financially stronger conpetitors
and such conpetition my materially adversely affect the Conpany’s financi al
per f or mance.

Ri sks Rel ating to Managenent and Specific Operations

he Conpany’'s Articles of Continuation contain provisions indemifying its
ficers and directors against a costs, charges and expenses incurred by
hem

he Conpany’s Articles of Continuation contain provisions that state, subject
to applicable law, the Conpany shall indemify every director or officer of
t he Conpany, subject to the limtations of the British Colunbia Corporations
Act, against all losses or liabilities that the Conpany’'s director or officer
may sustain or incur in the execution of their duties. The Conpany’s Articles
of Continuation further state that no director of officer shall be liable for
any |oss, danmage or misfortune that nmay happen to, or be incurred by the
Conpany in the execution of their duties if they acted honestly and in good
faith with a view to the best interests of the Conpany. Such limtations on
liability may reduce the likelihood of |litigation against the Conpany’s
officers and directors and may di scourage or deter its sharehol ders from suing
the Conpany’'s officers and directors based upon breaches of their duties to
t he Conpany, though such an action, if successful, mght otherw se benefit the
Conpany and its sharehol ders.

=H|=[o|d

Key managenent enployees nay fail to properly carry out their duties or nay
eave which could negatively inpact corporate operations and/or stock pricing
Wil e engaged in the business of exploiting mneral properties, the nature of
the Conpany’s business, its ability to continue its exploration of potential
expl orati on/ devel opnment projects, and to develop a conpetitive edge in the
mar ket pl ace, depends, in large part, on its ability to attract and namintain
qual i fied key nanagenent personnel. Conpetition for such personnel is intense
and the Conpany nay not be able to attract and retain such personnel. The
Conpany’s growh wll depend on the efforts of its Directors and its Senior
Managerent, including its President/CEQ Martin Cotter; and its GCeol ogist, Wes
Frankl in. Loss of these individuals could have a material adverse effect on
t he Conpany. The Conpany has no key-nman |life insurance and there are no
witten agreenments with them
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Managenent and Directors are associated with other resource conpanies and such
conflicts of interest and/or lack of attention to corporate affairs could have
a negative inpact on corporate operations and/or stock pricing

Certain of the Directors and Senior Managenent of the Conpany (specifically,
Martin Cotter and Wes Franklin) are also Directors and/or Senior Managenent

and/or significant shareholders of other conpanies, including those also
involved in the oil/gas industry; refer to ITEM 6. A for resunes. As the
Conpany is engaged in the business of exploiting oil/gas properties, such
associations nay give rise to conflicts of interest fromtinme to tine. Law

requires the directors of the Conpany to act honestly and in good faith with a
view to the best interests of the Conpany and to disclose any interest that

they nay have in any project or opportunity of the Company. |If a conflict of
interest arises at a neeting of the Board of Directors, any Director in a
conflict nust disclose his interest and abstain fromvoting on such matter. In
determining whether or not the Conpany wll participate in any project or
opportunity, the Directors will prinmarily consider the degree of risk to which
the Conpany may be exposed and its financial position at the tine. If not

properly resolved, the Conpany could be placed at a disadvantage when
consi dering which properties to acquire/explore and if/how to explore/devel op
exi sting properties.

Ri sks Relating to the Conpany’ s Common Shares

Principal Stockholders, Oficers and Directors have substantial contro
regarding stock ownership; this concentration could lead to conflicts o
interest and difficulties in the “public” investors effecting corporate
changes, and coul d adversely affect the Conpany’s stock prices

The Conmpany’s Senior Mnagenent, Directors and greater-than-five-percent
stockhol ders (and their affiliates), acting together, hold approximtely 19%
of the shares of the Conpany, on a diluted basis, have the ability to
i nfluence substantially all nmatters submitted to the Conpany’s stockhol ders
for approval (including the election and renoval of directors and any nerger,
consolidation or sale of all or substantially all of the Conpany’s assets) and

to control the Conmpany’s nmnagenent and affairs. Accordingly, this
concentration of ownership may have the effect of delaying, deferring or
preventing a change in <control of the Conpany, inpeding a nerger,

consol i dati on, takeover or other business conbination involving the Conpany or
di scouraging a potential acquirer from making a tender offer or otherw se
attenpting to obtain control of the Conmpany, which in turn could materially
adversely affect the nmarket price of the Conpany’s stock.

Enpl oyee/ Director/ Consultant Stock Options could lead to greater concentration
of stock ownership anong insiders and could lead to dilution of stock ownership
which could | ead to depressed stock prices

Because the success of the Conpany is highly dependent upon its respective
enpl oyees, the Conpany has granted to sone or all of its key enployees,
Directors and consultants options to purchase comon shares as non-cash
i ncentives. To the extent that significant nunbers of such options nay be
granted and exercised, the interests of the other stockholders of the Conpany
may be diluted causing possible | oss of investnent val ue.

The Conmpany has never declared or paid cash dividends on its Common Shares and

does not anticipate doing so in the foreseeable future. There can be no
assurance that the Conpany’'s Board of Directors wll ever declare cash
di vidends, which action is exclusively within its discretion. I nvestors

cannot expect to receive a dividend on the Conpany’'s Commobn Shares in the
foreseeable future, if at all.
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Low Stock Market Prices and Volume Volatility for the Conpany’'s commobn shares
create a risk that investors mght not be able to effect purchases/sales at
prices that accurately reflect corporate value

The market for the comon shares of the Conpany may be highly volatile for
reasons both related to the perfornmance of the Conpany or events pertaining to
the industry (i.e., price fluctuation/high production costs/accidents) as well
as factors unrelated to the Conmpany or its industry. The market price of
netals is highly speculative and volatile. Instability in oil/gas prices nmay
affect the interest in oil/gas properties and the devel opnent of production
from such properties and nmay adversely affect the Conpany’'s ability to raise
capital to explore existing or new oil/gas properties. The Conpany’s common
shares can be expected to be subject to volatility in both price and vol une
arising from narket expectations. Stockholders of the Company nmay be unable to
sell significant quantities of common shares in the public trading markets
wi thout a significant reduction in the price of the comobn shares.

Broker-Dealers May Be Discouraged From Effecting Transactions In Qur Common
Shares Because They Are Penny Stocks And Are Subject To The Penny Stock Rul es.
Rul es 15g-1 through 15g-9 pronul gated under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as anended, inpose sales practice and disclosure requirements on NASD
br oker-deal ers who nmake a market in “a penny stock”. A penny stock generally
i ncl udes any non- NASDAQ equity security that has a nmarket price of |ess than
US$5. 00 per share. Qur shares are quoted on the TSX Venture Exchange, and the
price of our comon shares ranged from CDN$0.13 (low) to CDN$0.28 (high)
during the period from 1/1/2006 to 12/31/2006, trading at CDN$0.14 on
12/ 31/2006; the closing price of our shares was CDN$0.10 on 5/31/2007. The
additional sales practice and disclosure requirements inposed upon broker-
deal ers mamy discourage broker-dealers from effecting transactions in our
shares, which could severely limt the market liquidity of the shares and
i npede the sale of our shares in the secondary narket.

Under the penny stock regulations, a broker-dealer selling penny stock to
anyone other than an established custoner or “accredited investor” (generally,
an individual with net worth in excess of US$1, 000,000 or an annual income
exceedi ng US$200, 000, or US$300,000 together with his or her spouse) nust meke
a special suitability determnation for the purchaser and nust receive the
purchaser's witten consent to the transaction prior to sale, unless the
br oker-deal er or the transaction is otherw se exenpt.

In addition, the penny stock regulations require the broker-dealer to deliver,
prior to any transaction involving a penny stock, a disclosure schedule
prepared by the US Securities and Exchange Comm ssion relating to the penny
stock market, unless the broker-dealer or the transaction is otherw se exenpt.
A broker-dealer is also required to disclose conm ssions payable to the
br oker-deal er and the registered representative and current quotations for the
securities. Finally, a broker-dealer is required to send nonthly statenents
di sclosing recent price information with respect to the penny stock held in a
custonmer's account and infornmation with respect to the linted market in penny
st ocks.
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| TEM 4. | NFORMATI ON ON THE COMPANY

4. A. History and Devel opnent of the Conpany

I nt roducti on

Portrush Petrol eum Corporation (hereinafter, together with its subsidiary, is
also referred to as the “Conpany”) in engaged in the exploration for and
production of oil/gas. Wthout any material properties at 12/31/1999, the
Conpany acquired interests in five oil/gas properties during 2000 (including
the Lenox Prospects) and two oil/gas properties during 2001. The | ess
prom sing properties have been disposed of and during 2002-2003 focused its
efforts on the oil/gas produci ng Lenox Property in Mchigan, USA. The M ssion
Ri ver Devel opnent Project was acquired in January 2004.

It is the intention of the Conpany, either alone or with others, to carry out
or participate in exploration and devel opnent prograns on its properties and
on other properties that it nay acquire an interest in, to determne the
exi stence, location, extent and quality of the oil and gas resources |ocated
on its properties and to drill and conplete, where appropriate, oil or gas
wel |l s.

The Conpany’s executive office is |located at:

1687 West Broadway #200, Vancouver, British Colunbia, Canada V6J 1X2
Tel ephone: 604-696-2555; and

Facsim | e: 604-677-5228.

Website: http://ww. portrushpetrol eum conf

e-mail: info@ortrushpetrol eum com

The Conpany’s registered office is |ocated at:

595 Howe Street #700, Vancouver, British Colunbia, Canada V6C 2T5
Tel ephone: 604-687-2923; and

Facsim | e: 604-648-9568.

The contact person is: Neal lverson, Director
The Conpany's fiscal year ends Decenber 31st.

The Conpany has one wholly-owed subsidiary: Portrush Petroleum (US)
Cor poration, incorporated in Mchigan, USA, on 11/17/2003.

The Conpany's conmon shares trade on the TSX Venture Exchange in Canada under
the synbol “PSH'” and on the OIC Bulletin Board in the USA under the synbo
“ PRRPF" .

The Conpany has 100,000,000 of no-par conmmon shares authorized. At
12/ 31/ 2006, the end of the Conpany's nobst recent fiscal year, there were
43,758,792 common shares issued and outstanding. At 5/15/2007, there were
43,708, 792 shares i ssued and outstandi ng.
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The Conpany's financial statenments are stated in Canadian Dollars (“CDN$") and
are prepared in accordance wth Canadi an GAAP. Material variations in the
accounting principles, practices and methods used in preparing those financia
statements from principles, practices and nethods accepted in the United
States are disclosed in notes to the financial statenents.

Herein, all references to “$" and “CDN$” refer to Canadian Dollars and al
references to “US$” refer to United States Dollars. Al references to compn
shares refer to the Conpany's Common Shares w thout Par Val ue unl ess otherw se
i ndi cat ed.

The information contained in this Annual Report is current as at 5/23/2006
except where a different date is specified.

Hi story and Devel opnent

| ncor por ati on/ Nanme Changes

The Conpany was incorporated under the |laws of Ontario, Canada, on 2/9/1965
under the nane “Barbi Lake Copper Mnes Limted". The Conpany’s nane was
changed to “Bar Resources Limted” on 4/28/1983, to “Southern Bar M nerals
Corporation” on 10/31/1995, to “Texas @lf Petroleum Corporation” on
2/ 12/ 1996, and to “Portrush Petrol eum Corporation” on 3/15/2000.

St ock Consol i dati ons

The Conpany consolidated its common shares on a 1-for-3.5 basis effective
12/19/1994 and on a 1-for-5 basis on 3/15/2000. Al references to nunber of
shares and to per share data reflect post-consolidation basis unless otherw se
i ndi cat ed.

Property Acquisitions
Fi scal 2000: Lanbton/Kent Counties = M chigan Basin Property, Ontario

Cranberry-Bot ha Prospects, Alberta
Lenox Prospects, M chigan
Fi scal 2001: Rock Springs Prospects, Wom ng
Fi scal 2003: Lenox North Prospects, M chigan
Fi scal 2004: M ssion River Devel opnent Project, Texas
Fi scal 2005: None
Fi scal 2006: None
Fi scal 2007-To- Date: None

Property/ Asset Di spositions
Fi scal 2000: None

Fi scal 2001: Lanbton/Kent Counties = M chigan Basin Property, Ontario
Fi scal 2002: Rock Springs Prospects, Wom ng

Fi scal 2003: None

Fi scal 2004: None

Fi scal 2005: None

Fi scal 2006: None

Fi scal 2007-To- Date: None
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Fi nanci ngs
The Conpany has financed its

i ssued

and share purchase warrants.

operations
public/private placenents of common shares,

t hr ough

in |oans,
shares issued for property, shares

in debt settlenents, and shares issued upon exercise of stock options

The following table lists equity offerings:

Year Nat ure of Share Issuance Nunmber of Shares Capital Raised
2000 Special Warrant O fering 2,541, 667 Speci al $305, 000
Private Pl acenent 2,694,000 Units $942, 900
2001 Private Pl acenent 5, 000, 000 Units $1, 500, 000
2002 Private Pl acenent 600, 000 Units $ 60, 000
Private Pl acenent 2,500,000 Units $250, 000
2003 Convertible Debt Offering 8% Converti bl e Debentures (1) $180, 000
Private Pl acenent 2,100,000 Units $210, 000
Private Pl acenent 2,037,059 Units $346, 300
2004: Private Placenent 3,100,000 Units $620, 000
Private Pl acenent 1, 500, 000 Shares $300, 000
Exerci se of Warrants 7,680, 000 Shares $1, 090, 200
Exercise of Stock Options 1, 050, 000 Shares $110, 000
2005: Exercise of Stock Options 1, 194, 500 Shares $179, 175
Private Pl acenent 2,000,000 Units $300, 000
2006: Stock Option Exercises 625, 000 Shares $ 93, 750
2007-t o-date: None

(1) Converted to 1,500,000 comon shares during FY2003.

4.B. BUSI NESS OVERVI EW

Busi ness of the Conpany — 2007/2006/ 2005/ 2004/2003/2002/ 2001/ 2000

In April/May 2000, the Conpany acquired the Lanbton/Kent Prospects in Ontario,
Canada. In June 2000, the Conpany acquired the Lenox Prospects in M chigan
USA. In January 2001, the Conpany acquired the Cranberry-Botha Property in
Al berta, Canada; the Conpany has witten off its investnent in the project.
In Septenber 2001, the Conpany acquired the Rock Springs Property in Wom ng,
USA; this project was abandoned in August 2002. In Septenmber 2003, the
Conpany acquired the Lenox North Prospects. In February 2004, the conpany
acquired the Mssion River Developnent Project in Texas, USA I n Novenber
2004, the Conmpany acquired a 5% working interest in a prospect located in
Ontario, Canada, in exchange for funding 50% of the project costs by paying
US$120, 000; the Conpany will receive a payout of all costs incurred plus a 5%
working interest in the project.
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Lenox Prospects, M chi gan, USA

The M chigan Basin contains extensive belts of organic reefs conposed of
carbonate rocks (linestone and dolonmite) fornmed under shallow seas in the
Silurian period. These oil/gas-filled reefs are the principal target for
expl oration conpanies in the basin. The Conpany is now in a position to form
relationships with the industry partners to evaluate other Silurian reef
projects in the basin. The Conpany will avoid exposing itself to unnecessary
risks in pursuing these opportunities.

The focus of the Conpany's operations remains the Lenox Prospects where the

Conpany has a 22.5% working interest. A successful well was brought into
production in January 2002 and a second well was conpleted in January 2003
The initial producing well, Richards #1-20, was drilled to a total depth of

3,000 feet and intersected the Brown Ni agaran reef anomaly at approxi mately
2,900 feet. The second producing well, the Martin #1-21, is a 600-foot step-
out fromthe discovery well. A 2-D seisnic program has been conpleted. The
Shnude LaTorre 1-20 well, located north of the other wells, encountered a gas
charged zone up-hole of the Reef formation. Managenent antici pates that
drilling expenditures on this property will not be significant during 2007

At present, the Conpany has two wells on production currently producing at a
conbined rate of 12 barrels of oil per day (Decenber 2006), with a snall
amount of gas being flared.

Production revenue for 2002 was $302,915, prinmarily derived fromthe Ri chards
#1-20 well at the Lenox Prospects that went on stream in January 2002.
Production revenue for 2003 was $415, 244, derived fromthe conbi ned production
of the Richards #1-20 and the Martin #1-21 (placed on production in April
2003), both located at the Lenox Prospects. Production revenue fromthe Lenox
Prospects for 2004 was $349, 550, derived from the conbined production of the

Ri chards #1-20 and the Martin #1-21. Production revenue from the Lenox
Prospects for 2005 was $330, 187, derived from the conbi ned production of the
Ri chards #1-20 and the Martin #1-21. Producti on revenue from the Lenox

Prospects for 2006 was $204, 742, derived from the conbi ned production of the
Ri chards #1-20 and the Martin #1-21

Lenox North Prospects
In Septenber 2003, the Conpany acquired a 22.5% working interest in a

| easehold immediately north of it’s Lenox Prospect property in southeast
M chigan. The Conpany has also agreed an area of nutual interest (“AM”) of
approxinmately 2,000 acres conprising of leases in and around the said
| easehol d. The Conpany has the option to participate in the drilling of the
initial four wells and any further developnment wells within the AM. The
target on the | easehold, which has seismc cover, is an extension of N agarian
reef that was discovered on the Lenox property. Typical reefs in the area can
vary in size from approxinmately 300,000 barrels and 2BCF to over 1,000, 000
barrels and 10 BCF of recoverable reserves and are contained in surface area
bet ween 80 to 300 acres.

In Cctober 2003, the LaTorie #1-20 Well was drilled. This well, located
approximately 1,300 north of the Richards #1-20 Well and Martin #1-21 \Vell,
did not encountered the Silarian Reef, as hoped for, and was abandoned.

In April 2004, the Werdernman #1-21 Well was drilled. This well, Ilocated
approxinmately 650 feet fromthe Martin #1-21 Wll, was on a seismic |line and
was testing the southeastern extension of the platformreef fromthe Ri chards
#1-20 and Martin #1-21 wells. The reef was not encountered and the well was
abandoned.
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M ssion River Devel opment Proj ect

In February 2004, the Conpany entered into an agreenent with the MAl ester
Fuel Conpany of Houston, Texas to develop the Mssion River Project situated
in Refugio and CGoliad Counties, Gulf Coast, Texas. The Conpany paid 10% of
the estimated drilling costs for the 12 well devel opnent drilling program and
acquired a 10% working interest in the project. The property is subject to a
25% royalty. The property is crossed over by a natural gas pipeline and can be
serviced by two natural gas transnission systens. The initial twelve (12)
wel | program was designed to test bypassed oil and gas payzones in the
traditional producing intervals from5,000 to 6,400 feet. After the first six
shallow wells were drilled the working interest partners agreed to drill two
deep wells in exchange for the six renmaining shallow wells. The two deep
wel I s have been drilled to 10,400 feet and 8,600 feet and all eight wells are
currently on production

In Cctober 2004, the Conpany did not exercise its right to acquire up to an
additional 19%interest in the Mssion River Devel opnment Project.

Natural gas in the area is typically sold into the local spot nmarket at an
esti mated di scount of US$0.50/ncf, relative to the Henry Hub price. The Henry
Hub price for 2006 was about US$9 per Mibtu. A conpression fee may be applied
to the wellhead price. The operating costs of a typical gas well are
estimated to be US$3,500 per nonth. Crude oil in the area is trucked to a
local refinery and nets an estimted wellhead price of Cushing Spot less a
US$1. 50/ barrel discount. The Cushing Spot price for 2006 was about US$65 per
barrel

The operator drilled the first well on 5/14/2004. The Scani o- Shel don Wl #2
was drilled to the Massive Zone at 6,800 feet and was tested: for bypassed oi
and gas pay between 5,000 and 6,800 feet; for untested oil zones in the |ower
4,000 feet range; and untested gas zones down to 2,300 feet. A total of 120
sidewal | -cores/eight formation- pressure-tests/log analyses identified eight
zones as having probable reserves. The well was conpleted as a gas well,
wi t hout yet testing the seven other zones including the main target zone.

During 2004/2005/2006, the Conpany conpleted the next four wells on the
project, producing oil, gas, and condensate:
July 2004: Scani o- Shel don Wl | #4;

July 2004: Scani o- Shel don Wl | #5;
August 2004: Scani o- Shel don Wl #3;
August 2004: Scani o- Shel don Wl #2;
August 2004: Scani o- Shel don Wl #1;

February 2005: Scani o- Shel don Wl | #9;

March 2006: Scani o- Shel don Wl | #6;

August 2006: Scani o- Shel don Wl #7;
March 2007: Scani o- Hawn Wl | #1.

Production revenue from the Mssion River Developnment Project for 2005 was
$258, 706, derived from the conbined production of the first five wells noted
above. Production revenue fromthe M ssion River Devel opnent Project for 2006
was $334,977.58, derived fromthe conbined production of the first seven wells
not ed above.

The Mssion River field has nine wells on production and at May 22, 2007 was
produci ng approximately 2.3 mllion cubic feet of gas and 70 barrels of oil a
day.

An upgrade of the pipeline gathering system was conpleted in Decenber 2006

which will allow an increase in production capacity from present production of
three mllion cubic feet a day to eighteen mllion cubic feet a day.
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The operator, MAl ester has decided to proceed with a new deep well program
and the Conpany has paid $149,500 for its 10% share of the cost of the first
new program deep well, the Scani o-Hawn No.1 drilled to a depth of 8,670 feet.
The Scani o-Hawn Wel | #1 well went on production March, 2007.

United States vs. Foreign Sal es/ Assets

During 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, the Conpany generated $777, 455,
$593, 598 and $442,368 in oil/gas production revenue, fromthe Lenox Prospects
in Mchigan, USA and the M ssion River Devel opnent Project in Texas, USA.

At 12/31/2006 and 12/31/2005, respectively, $109,616 and $104, 464 of the
Conpany’s capital assets were |located in Canada; the remmi nder were |ocated in
the United States, principally the Lenox Prospects, Lenox North Prospects, and
the M ssion River Devel opnent Project.
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QO l/Gas Operations

Sunmary of the Conpany’'s appraised interests in oil and gas reserves after
royalties is contained in Table No. 3. At 12/31/2004, all proved reserves are
|ocated at the Lenox Prospects in Mchigan, USA; and at 12/31/2005 and
12/ 31/ 2006, both the Lenox Prospects and the M ssion Ri ver Devel opnent Project
contain proven reserves.

Table No. 3
Suppl erental Information on G| and Gas Producing Activities
Schedul e of Changes in Reserves
Years Ended 12/31/2006, 12/31/2005, 12/31/2004, 12/31/2003, and 12/31/2002

Ol Gas

SBL MVEf
Reserves, 12/31/2002 18, 383 10.0
Di scoveri es/ Ext ensi ons: 0 0.0
Revi si ons 5,604 (10.0
Pr oducti on (8, 854) (0.0)
Reserves, 12/31/2003 15, 133 0.0
Di scoveri es/ Ext ensi ons: 26, 700 326.0
Revi si ons 9,173 0.0
Pr oducti on (7,524) (12.0)
Reserves, 12/31/2004 43, 482 314.0
Di scoveri es/ Ext ensi ons: 0 0
Revi si ons 16, 612 169.0
Pr oducti on (7,399) (14.0)
Reserves, 12/31/2005 52, 695 469.0
Di scoveri es/ Ext ensi ons: 0 0
Revi si ons (20,956) (273.0)
Pr oducti on (5,066) (53.0)
Reserves, 12/31/2006 26, 651 143.0

Average sales price per unit and average production cost for oil and gas
produced during the periods are shown in Table No. 4. Production costs are
al l ocated based on the weighted average of oil and gas sales. In 2003 and
2002, production was primarily crude oil

Table No. 4
Product Pricing and Production Costs

Average Sales Price Aver age Production Costs
Year Gas (per ntf) Li qui ds (per bbl) Gs (per ntf) Li qui ds (per bbl)
2006 $6. 68 $62 $3. 16 $6
2005 $11. 00 $50 $3. 16 $6
2004 $7.50 $43 $0. 80 $6
2003 --- $30 --- $6
2002 --- $35 --- $6
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Productive wells as of 5/31/2007 were as foll ows:

Table No. 5
Productive Wl ls

G oss Wlls Net Wells

Gas Gl Gas Gl
Lenox Prospects 0 2 0.0 0. 45
M ssion River Devel opnent Project 9 0 0.9 0.00

Total devel oped and undevel oped acreage interests owned by the Conpany is
sunmari zed by geographic area in Table No. 6, as of 5/31/2007.

Table No. 6
Producti ve/ Undevel oped Acreage

Producti ve Acreage Undevel oped Acreage
G oss Acres Net Acres &G oss Acres Net Acres
M chi gan, USA 160.0 37.5 200 45.0
Texas, USA 240.0 24.0 540 54.0

Productive and dry wells drilled during the follow ng fiscal periods:

Table No. 7
Drilling Activity

G oss Net
Year Pr oducti ve Dry Pr oducti ve Dry
2007-to-date 1 0 0.10 0
2006 0 0. 20 0
2005 1 0 0.10 0
2004 5 1 0.50 0. 45
2003 1 1 0.225 0.45
2002 1 0 0.225 0

Present Activities
There is one well to be drilled in Sumer 2007.

Delivery Commtnents
There are no delivery commtnents as of 5/31/2007.

20



Plan OF Operations

Source of Funds for Fiscal 2007
The Conpany generated $777,455 in oil/gas revenue in Fiscal 2006 and
anticipates an increase during Fiscal 2007.

The Company had working capital bal ance of $142,507 at 12/ 31/ 2006.

At 5/31/2007, the Conpany had 3,900,000 outstanding stock options with an
average exercise price of $0.15. At 5/31/2007 the Conpany had 2,000,000
out standi ng share purchase warrants with an exercise prices of $0.15.

The Conpany has had discussions with third parties about additional equity
of ferings; but, the talks as of 5/31/2007 were prelimnary.

Use of Funds for Fiscal 2007
During Fiscal 2007, the Conpany estimates that total general/admnistrative
costs will be approximtely $350, 000.

During Fiscal 2007, the Conmpany estimates that it wll expend $500,000 on
property acqui sition/exploration/devel opnent.

Anti ci pated Changes to Facilities/Enpl oyees

Since the signing of the property acquisition agreenents, the Conpany added no
additional personnel to assist property acquisition/exploration/devel opnent
programs or for admnistrative/general activities. There are no plans to add
addi tional in-house personnel; rather, the Conpany is relying on the property
operators to provide all technical staff.

4.C. Organi zation Structure
The Conpany has one wholly-owed subsidiary: Portrush Petroleum (US)

Cor poration, incorporated in Mchigan, USA, on 11/17/2003.

4.D.  Property, Plant and Equi pnent

Executive Ofices

The Conpany's executive offices are located in shared, rented prenises of
approxi mately 250 square feet at 1687 West Broadway #200, Vancouver, British
Colunbia V6J 1X2. The Conpany began occupying this facility in My 2000 and
considers the facility adequate for current needs.
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Lenox Prospects, M chigan, USA
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In June 2000, the Conpany acquired a 22.5% working interest in two Silurian-
Ordovi ci an prospects, and associ ated | eased | ands (approximately 2,560 acres)
located in St. Cair County, Cottrellville Township and Maconb County, Lenox
Townshi p, Sout heast M chigan in consideration of cash paynents to Range of
$150,000 for each of the two areas. The Conpany holds a 22.5% working
interest in the property. A successful well (Richards #1-20) was drilled and
conpleted; the well commenced production in January 2002 and renains on
production. A second well (Martin #1-21) was drilled and conpleted in January
2003 and began producing in April 2003.

Lenox North Prospects

In Septenber 2003, the Conpany acquired a 22.5% working interest in a
| easehold imediately north of the Lenox Prospect property in southeast
M chigan. The Company has al so agreed an area of nutual interest (“AM") of
approximately 2,000 acres conprising of leases in and around the said

| easehol d. The operator plans to drill four wells on the property. The
Conpany has the option to participate in the drilling of the initial four
wells and any further developnent wells within the AM. The target on the

| easehol d, which has seismic cover, is an extension of N agarian reef that was
di scovered on the Lenox property. Typical reefs in the area can vary in size
from approxi mately 300,000 barrels and 2BCF to over 1,000,000 barrels and 10
BCF of recoverable reserves and are contained in surface area between 80 to
300 acres.
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M ssi on Ri ver Devel opnent Proj ect
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In February 2004, the Conpany entered into an agreenent with the MAl ester
Fuel Conpany of Houston, Texas to develop the Mssion River Project situated
in Refugio and CGoliad Counties, Gulf Coast, Texas. The Conpany paid 10% of
the estimated drilling costs for the 12 well devel opnment drilling program and
acquired a 10% working interest in the project. The property is subject to a
25% royalty. The property is crossed over by a natural gas pipeline and can be
serviced by two natural gas transnission systens. The initial twelve (12)
wel | program was designed to test bypassed oil and gas payzones in the
traditional producing intervals from5,000 to 6,400 feet. After the first six
shallow wells were drilled the working interest partners agreed to drill two
deep wells in exchange for the six remaining shallow wells. The two deep
wel | s have been drilled to 10,400 feet and 8,600 feet and all eight wells are
currently on production.
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| TEM 5. OPERATI NG AND FI NANCI AL REVI EW AND PROSPECTS

The follow ng discussion for the fiscal years ended 12/31/2006, 12/31/2005
and 12/31/2004 should be read in conjunction with the Conpany’s consoli dated
financial statements and notes thereto.

Overvi ew

Wthout any naterial properties at 12/31/1999, the Conpany acquired interests
in five oil/gas properties during 2000 (including the Lenox Prospects) and two
oil/gas properties during 2001. The |ess promsing properties have been
di sposed of and during 2002-2003 focused its efforts on the oil/gas producing
Lenox Property in Mchigan, USA. The Lenox North Property was acquired in
Septenber 2003 and the Mssion River Developnent Project was acquired in
January 2004.

The funds raised in the equity financings discussed bel ow have been used for
the aforementioned property acquisitions and the funding of the Conpany’s
share of oil/gas well exploration/developnment. This has |led to nine producing
oil/gas wells; $442,368 in oil/gas revenue in Fiscal 2004, and production of
7,524 barrels of oil and 12,000 MCF of gas in Fiscal 2004; and $593,598 in
oi | /gas revenue in Fiscal 2005, production of 7,399 barrels of oil and 14, 000
MCF of gas in Fiscal 2005, and production of 5,066 barrels of oil and 53, 000
MCF of gas in Fiscal 2006.

Fi nanci ngs
In May 2003, the Conpany issued a convertible debenture for proceeds of

$180, 000 maturing 5/1/2005, bearing interest at 8% per annum convertible, at
the option of the lender, into units at $0.12 per wunit until 5/1/2004 and
thereafter at $0.14 per unit until 5/1/2005. Each unit was conprised of one
conmon share and one comon share purchase warrant. Each share purchase
warrant entitles the holder to acquire one additional conmon share for $0.12
per share until 5/1/2004 and thereafter at $0.14 per share expiring 5/1/2005
The funds were used for working capital and to pay for the conpletion costs on
the Martin 1-21 well. Duri ng Novenber 2003, the convertible debentures were
converted into 1,500,000 units of comon shares and warrants.

In August 2003, the Conpany conpleted a private placenent of 2,100,000 units
at $0.10 a unit, raising $210,000. Two of the Conmpany’s Directors subscribed
for $110,000 of the placenent. Each unit consisted of one comon share and
one share purchase warrant. One warrant and an additional $0.10 will entitle
t he hol der to purchase one additional common share until 8/28/2005.

In Cctober 2003, the Conpany concluded a private placement of 2,037,059 units
at $0.17 a unit, raising $346, 300. Each unit consisted of one commobn share
and one share purchase warrant. One warrant and an additional $0.24 wil
entitle the holder to purchase one additional common share until 10/14/2005

In June 2004, the Conpany concluded a private placenment of 3,100,000 units at
$0.20 a unit, raising $620,000. Each unit consisted of one comobn share and

one share purchase warrant. Ei ght warrants and an additional $0.20 will
entitle the holder to purchase one additional comon share until 6/2/2006; the
warrants will entitle the holders to purchase a total of 387,500 conmon

shares. The Conpany issued 225,000 conmmon shares at a value of $45,000 as a
finder’'s fee.

I n August 2004, the Conpany concluded a private placenent of 1,500,000 conmon
shares at $0.20 per share, raising $300,000. The Conpany issued 93,750 conmpn
shares at a deened val ue of $18,750 as a finder’s fee.

During Fiscal 2004, the Conpany raised: $1,090,200 through the issuance of
7,680, 000 common shares pursuant to the exercise of warrants; and $110, 000
t hrough the issuance of 1,050,000 common shares pursuant to the exercise of
stock options.
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In Septenber 2005, the Conpany issued 2,000,000 units at $0.15 per unit for
gross proceeds of $300,000. Each unit consisted of one common share and one
share purchase warrant exercisable at $0.15 per share expiring 9/14/2007. The
Conpany paid a finder's fee and other issuance costs of $24,942.

During Fiscal 2005, the Conpany raised: $179,175 through the issuance of
1, 194,500 comon shares pursuant to the exercise of stock options.

During Fiscal 2006, the Conpany raised $93,750 through the issuance comon
shares pursuant to the exercise of 625,000 stock options. Al so, the Conpany
expended $40,000 purchasing and retiring 300,000 comon shares in the open
mar ket .

Critical Accounting Policies

Managenent is required to nmke judgnents, estinmates and assunptions that
affect the reported anpbunts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statenents and the reported ampounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. On a regular basis, we evaluate our
estimates and assunptions. W base our estinmates on historical experience and
on various other assunptions that are believed to be reasonable under the
circunstances, the results of which formthe basis for making judgnments about
the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under
di fferent assunptions or conditions.

US GAAP RECONCI LI ATI ON

Ol and gas properties
Under both United States and Canadi an GAAP, property, plant and equi prent nust
be assessed for potential inpairment.

Under Canadian GAAP, a ceiling test is applied to ensure that capitalized
costs for oil and gas properties and equipnent do not exceed the sum of
estimated undi scounted, future net revenues from proven reserves | ess the cost
incurred or estimated to develop those reserves, interest and general and
adm nistration costs, and an estinmate for restoration costs and applicable
t axes. Effective 1/1/2004, the CICA inplenented a new pronouncenent on
i mpairment of long-lived assets, which required the inpairnent |loss as a
result of the ceiling test to be neasured as the anmpbunt by which the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds the expected future cash flows di scounted using a
risk free interest rate.

Under United States GAAP, costs accunulated in each cost center are limted to
an anmount equal to the present value, discounted at 10% of the estinmated
future net operating revenues from proved reserves, net of restoration costs
and incone taxes. Under United States GAAP an additional ceiling test wite-
down was not required as at Decenber 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003.
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St ock- based comnpensati on

There is no difference between Canadian GAAP and United States GAAP on the
accounting for stock-based conpensation for the years ended Decenber 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004.

Loss per share

Under both Canadian GAAP and United States GAAP basic |loss per share is
calcul ated using the weighted average nunber of common shares outstanding
during the year.

Under United States GAAP, the weighted average nunmber of comopn shares
out st andi ng excludes any shares that remain in escrow, but nmay be earned out
based on the Conpany incurring a certain amount of exploration and devel opnent
expenditures. The wei ghted average nunber of shares outstandi ng under United
States GAAP for the vyears ended Decenber 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was
43,951, 326, 41,476,215 and 33,755,501, respectively. Accordingly, the |oss
per share for the years ended Decenber 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was ($0.01),
($0.00) and ($0.02), respectively.

Asset retirenent obligations

Under United States GAAP, Statenent of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143,
“Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” requires conpanies to record the
fair value of the liability for closure and renoval costs associated with the
| egal obligations wupon retirenment or renobval of any tangible long-Ilived
assets. Under this standard, the initial recognition of the liability is
capitalized as part of the asset cost and depreciated over its estimated
useful life.

Under Canadian GAAP, the Conpany was required to record asset retirenent
obligations as at 12/31/2006, 12/31/2005 and 12/31/2004 for estinmated future
net costs of well abandonment and site restoration including renoval of
production facilities at the end of their useful life of $10,494, $10,494 and
$6, 473. New accounting and disclosure standards were introduced under
Canadi an GAAP (Note 2 to the audited financial statenents) and adopted by the
Conpany effective 1/1/2003. Accordingly, there is no difference between
Canadi an GAAP and United States GAAP as at Decenber 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004.
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New accounti ng pronouncenents

In July 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in |Incone
Taxes”. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting and reporting for uncertainties in
i ncome tax |aw. FIN 48 prescribes a conprehensive nodel for the financial
statenment recognition, neasurenent, presentation, and disclosure of uncertain
tax positions taken or expected to be taken in incone tax returns. FIN 48 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after Decenber 15, 2006. The Conpany is
currently in the process of evaluating the inpact of FIN 48 on the financial
position and results of operations of the Conpany.

In Septenber 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurenents”.
SFAS No. 157 establishes a framework for nmeasuring the fair value of assets
and liabilities. This framework is intended to provide increased consistency
in how fair value determnations are nade under various existing accounting
standards which permt, or in some cases require, estimtes of fair narket
val ue. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after Novenber
15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years. Earlier application
i s encouraged, provided that the reporting entity has not yet issued financia
statenments for that fiscal year, including any financial statenents for an
interim period within that fiscal year. The Conmpany is currently in the
process of evaluating the inpact of SFAS 157 on the financial position and
results of operations of the Conpany.

The adoption of these new pronouncenents is not expected to have a materi al

effect on the Conmpany’'s consolidated financial position or results of
operations.

Results OF Qperations

Fi scal 2006 Ended Decenber 31, 2006 versus Fiscal 2005

The Conmpany acquired interests in five oil/gas properties during 2000
(including the Lenox Prospects) and two oil/gas properties during 2001. The
| ess promising properties have been disposed of. During 2002-2003, the
Conpany has focused its efforts on the oil/gas producing Lenox Property in
M chi gan, USA The Lenox North Property was acquired in Septenber 2003 and
the M ssion River Devel opnent Project was acquired in January 2004.

The Conpany generated $777,455 during 2006 (versus $593,598) in oil/gas
revenue from the Lenox Prospects and M ssion River project. Ofsetting this
revenue was $399, 036 (versus $122,269) in depletion costs. GOl/gas operating
expenses were $195,070 (versus $221,664), reflecting increased production
activity. Goss Profit was $183, 348 (versus $249, 665).

General / Adm ni strative (excluding stock-based conpensati on) expenses rose 25%
to $409, 264 during 2006 (versus $327,506), as expected, due to the Conpany’s
i ncreased investor relations costs as well as nore nodestly increased other
costs.

Non- Cash st ock-based conpensation relating to the granting of stock options
rose to $205,385 from $75,193, reflecting increased granting of options.

Net Loss for Fiscal 2006 was ($435,117) versus ($160,248). Basis and Diluted
Loss Per Share was ($0.01) versus ($0.01).
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Fi scal 2005 Ended Decenber 31, 2005 versus Fiscal 2004

The Conpany acquired interests in five oil/gas properties during 2000
(including the Lenox Prospects) and two oil/gas properties during 2001. The
| ess promising properties have been disposed of. During 2002-2003, the
Conpany has focused its efforts on the oil/gas producing Lenox Property in
M chi gan, USA The Lenox North Property was acquired in Septenber 2003 and
the M ssion River Devel opnent Project was acquired in January 2004.

The Conpany generated $593,598 during 2005 (versus $442,368) in oil/gas
revenue from the Lenox Prospects and M ssion River project. Ofsetting this
revenue was $122, 269 (versus $121,937) in depletion costs. GO l/gas operating
expenses were $221,664 (versus $145,556), reflecting increased production
activity. Goss Profit was $249, 665 [versus $174, 875].

General / Adm ni strative (excluding stock-based conpensation) expenses fell 40%
to $327,506 during 2005 (versus $569, 690), as expected, due to the Conpany’s
reduced office/ mscell aneous costs, reduced consulting/adm nistrative fees and
| ower investor relations’ costs.

I nvestor Rel ations expenses fell by two-thirds to $53,635 from $164, 344 as a
result of changes to the investor relations program Consulting/Adm nistrative
expenses fell by two-thirds to $34,750 from $107,170 reduced use of
consul tants. O fice/ Mscell aneous expenses fell by a half to $48,760 from
$83, 702 due to staffing reductions.

Non- Cash st ock-based conpensation relating to the granting of stock options
fell to $75,193 from $298, 483, reflecting reduced granting of options.

Net Loss for Fiscal 2005 was ($160,248) versus ($766,320). Basis and Diluted
Loss Per Share was ($0.01) versus ($0.02).

Fi scal 2004 Ended Decenber 31, 2004 versus Fiscal 2003

The Conpany generated $442,368 during 2004 (versus $415,244) in oil/gas
revenue from the Lenox Prospects and M ssion River project. Ofsetting this
revenue was $121,937 (versus $599,679) in depletion costs; the ceiling test
cal cul ation deternined that the net book value of the Conmpany’s assets in the
USA exceeded net future cash flows from proven reserves and, accordingly, the
Conpany recorded a ceiling test wite-down of $319,950 during 2003. Gl /gas
operating expenses were $145,556 (versus $123,767), reflecting increased
production activity. Goss Profit (loss) was $174, 875 [versus ($308, 202)].

General / Adm ni strative (excluding stock-based conmpensati on) expenses increased
by 60% to $569, 691 during 2004 (versus $343,110), as expected, due to the
Conpany’s increased exploration and devel opnent activity, fund raising, and
i nvestor relations effort. I nvestor Rel ations expenses rose nore than six-
fold to $164,344 from $24,860 as a result of the hiring of an outside
consulting firmand the devel opnment of a corporate awareness program

O ficel/ Mscell aneous expenses rose 73% to $107,355 from $62,040 due to the
general increase in corporate activity and consulting/admni nistrative expenses
tripled to $107,170 from $34,322 as well due to general increase in corporate
activity.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Fi scal 2006 Ended Decenber 31, 2006

Working Capital was $142,507 at 12/ 31/ 2006.

Wor ki ng Capital was $157,501 at 12/ 31/ 2005.

Wor ki ng Capital was negative ($286,850) at 12/31/2004.
Wor ki ng Capital was negative ($306,989) at 12/31/2003.
Wor ki ng Capital was negative ($574,732) at 12/31/2002.
Wor ki ng Capital was negative ($1,018,261) at 12/31/2001.

SRS G RO

The Company generated $777,455 in revenue from oil/gas production during
Fi scal 2006. Wil e the Conpany anticipates increased revenue during Fisca
2007 and beyond, profitability fromits oil/gas operations is not expected to
be sufficient to fund all corporate operations and growh during the next
fiscal year. Thus, the Conmpany expects to rely upon equity financing as its
primary source of funding.

The Conpany has insufficient financial resources to undertake by itself the
exploration and developnent of its planned exploration and devel opnent
prograns during Fiscal 2007. Long-term the paynent of property paynents and
the devel opment of its property interests wll depend upon the Conpany's
ability to obtain financing through the joint venturing of projects, private
pl acenent financing, public financing or other neans. There is no assurance

that the Conpany wll be successful in obtaining the required financing or
that financing will be available on ternms and conditions acceptable to the
Conpany or that will not cause significant dilution to sharehol ders.

During Fiscal 2006, 625,000 stock options were exercised, raising $93, 750.

Cash Provided by Fiscal 2006 Operating Activities totaled $63,933, including
the ($435,117) Net Loss. Material adjustments included depletion of $399, 036,
st ock- based conpensation of $205,385, and the ($105,371) net change in non-
cash working capital itemns. Cash Used in Fiscal 2006 Investing Activities
totaled ($239,967), for oil/gas property expenditures. Cash Provided by
Fiscal 2006 Financing Activities totaled $37,179, the inflows from the
af orementi oned stock option exercises and of fset by advances repaid to rel ated
parties and the open-nmarket stock repurchases.

The Conpany has filed a notice of intention to undertake a nornmal course
i ssuer bid with the British Colunbia Securities Conm ssion for up to 5% of the
Conpany’s issued share capital (2,200,000 common shares) over a twelve-nonth
period. The commencenent date of the plan was be Novenber 2006, with 300, 000
shares acquired by 12/31/2006 and an additional 50,000 by 5/31/2007.
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Fi scal 2005 Ended Decenber 31, 2005
Working Capital was $157,501 at 12/ 31/ 2005.

The Company generated $593,598 in revenue from oil/gas production during
Fi scal 2005. Wil e the Conpany anticipates increased revenue during Fiscal
2006 and beyond, profitability fromits oil/gas operations is not expected to
be sufficient to fund all corporate operations and growh during the next
fiscal year. Thus, the Conmpany expects to rely upon equity financing as its
primary source of funding.

The Conpany has insufficient financial resources to undertake by itself the
exploration and developnent of its planned exploration and devel opnent
prograns during Fiscal 2006. Long-term the paynent of property paynents and
the devel opment of its property interests wll depend upon the Conpany's
ability to obtain financing through the joint venturing of projects, private
pl acenent financing, public financing or other neans. There is no assurance

that the Conpany wll be successful in obtaining the required financing or
that financing will be available on terms and conditions acceptable to the
Conpany or that will not cause significant dilution to sharehol ders.

The Conpany conpleted a private placenent of 2,000,000 units during Fiscal
2005, with gross proceeds of $300,000. |In addition, 1,194,599 stock options
were exercised, raising $179, 175.

Cash Used in Fiscal 2005 Qperating Activities totaled ($85,103), including the
($160, 248) Net Loss. Material adjustnents included depletion of $122, 269
wite-off of accounts payable of ($8,215), accrual of managenent fees of
$72, 000, stock-based compensation of $75,193, and the ($186,102) net change in
non- cash working capital itens. Cash Used in Fiscal 2005 Investing Activities
totaled ($47,096), for oil/gas property expenditures. Cash Provided by Fisca
2005 Financing Activities totaled $247, 202, predom nately from the
af orenmenti oned private placenents and offset by advances repaid to related
parties.

Research and devel opnent, patents and |icenses, etc.
Trend information

Saf e har bor.

--- No Disclosure Necessary ---

SllSall
0l wll(@]

5.E. O f-Balance Sheet Arrangenents.

We do not have any off-bal ance sheet arrangenents that have, or are reasonably
likely to have, a current or future material effect on our financia
condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of
operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resource that is
material to investors.

5. F. Tabular disclosure of contractual obligations.
The Conpany does not have any contractual obligations as of 5/31/2007 that
will require significant cash outlays in the future.
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I TEM 6. DI RECTORS, SEN OR MANAGEMENT, AND EMPLOYEES

6.A. Directors and Seni or Managenent

Table No. 8
Directors and Seni or Managenent

May 31, 2007
Date of First
El ection or
Nane Posi tion Age Appoi nt nent
Martin P. Cotter (1)(2) Presi dent/ CEQ' Di r ect or 55 January 1996
Neal 1verson (1)(3) Director 56 Mar ch 2000
Wes Franklin (4) Director 60 May 2005

(1) Menber of Audit Committee.
(2) He spends over half of his tinme on the affairs of the Conpany.
Resident/Citizen of Ireland
Busi ness address: 65 Main Street, Blackrock, Dublin, Ireland.
(3) Resident/Citizen of British Colunbia, Canada
Busi ness address: c/o Portrush Petrol eum Corp.
1687 West Broadway #200, Vancouver, BC V6J 1X2
(4) Resident/Citizen of Washington, USA
Busi ness address: 561 Mussel Beach, Coupeville, WA 98239

Martin P. Cotter, President/CEQ D rector of the Conpany is a professional
engi neer resident in Dublin, Ireland. He al so manages Ashcliff Holdings, a
private property and investnent conpany.

Neal Iverson, Director of the Conpany, is a comrercial realtor who has been
associated with Wstern Mrtgage Realty Corporation in Vancouver, British
Col unbi a for over fifteen years.

Wes Franklin, Director of the Conpany, is a registered geologist with both the
State of Washington and the American Association of Petrol eum Geol ogi sts, and
he is a nmenber of SPE and SE. G He has been in the exploration and production
segnent of the petroleum industry for 34 years and spent over 16 years in
seni or managenent positions for Tenneco G| Conpany and Fina G| and Cheni cal
Conpany. Since his retirement from Fina in 1997, he has been an active
consultant in both donestic and international exploration plays.

The Directors have served in their respective capacities since their election
and/ or appointnment and will serve until the next Annual GCeneral Meeting or
until a successor is duly elected, unless the office is vacated in accordance
with the Articles/By-Laws of the Conpany.

The Senior Managenent serves at the pleasure of the Board of Directors with
managenent service contracts but without term of office, except as disclosed
in | TEM #6B bel ow.

Despite the Conpany’s Executive Oficers spending material portions of their

time on businesses other than the Conpany, the Conpany believes that they
devote sufficient tine to the Conpany to properly carry out their duties.
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No Director and/or Executive Oficer has been the subject of any order,
judgrment, or decree of any governnental agency or admnistrator or of any
court or conpetent jurisdiction, revoking or suspending for cause any |icense,
permt or other authority of such person or of any corporation of which he is
a Director and/or Executive Oficer, to engage in the securities business or
in the sale of a particular security or tenmporarily or permanently restraining
or enjoining any such person or any corporation of which he is an officer or
director from engaging in or continuing any conduct, practice, or enploynent
in connection with the purchase or sale of securities, or convicting such
person of any felony or m sdenmeanor involving a security or any aspect of the
securities business or of theft or of any felony.

There are no arrangenents or understandi ngs between any two or nore Directors
or Executive Oficers, pursuant to which he was selected as a Director or
Executive O ficer. There are no famly rel ationships between any two or nore
Directors or Executive Oficers.

6.B. Conpensation

Director Conpensation. The Conpany has no formal plan for conpensating its
Directors for their service in their capacity as Directors. Directors are
entitled to reinbursement for reasonable travel and other out-of-pocket
expenses incurred in connection with attendance at neetings of the Board of

Directors. The Board of Directors nmay award special renmuneration to any
Director undertaking any special services on behalf of the Conpany other than
services ordinarily required of a Director. Q her than indicated below no

Director received any conpensation for his services as a Director, including
conmittee participation and/ or special assignnents.

Seni or Managenent Cash Conpensation. During Fiscal 2006 Ended 12/31/2006, the
Conpany pai d/ accrued cash conpensation/salary (directly and indirectly) to one
Seni or Managenent/Director totaling $80,875 to Martin Cotter

Table No. 9 details conpensation paid/accrued for Fiscal 2006/ 2005/2004 ended
Decenmber 31st for the Senior Managenent and Directors.

Table No. 9
Sunmary Conpensation Tabl e
Seni or Managenent and Directors

Long- Ter m Conpensati on

Annual Conpensati on Awar ds

Name and O her Restricted Al
Pri nci pal Fi scal Annual St ock Opt i ons/ LTIP Oher
Posi ti on Year Sal ary Bonus Conp. Awar d(s) SARS(#) Payouts Conp.
Martin Cotter: President/CEQ Director (1)

2006 $80, 875 nil ni | 0 ni | nil ni

2005 $72,000 nil ni | nil nil nil ni

2004 $72,000 nil $55,000 1,000,000 nil nil ni

(1) 2004 O her Annual Conpensation includes:
$35, 000 "val ue realized" fromthe exercise of 500,000 stock options.
$20, 000 "deened val ue" of stock options granted at "bel ow market".
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Ootions/ SARs Granted During The Most Recently Conpl eted Fiscal Year

During the nmost recently conpleted fiscal year, the follow ng incentive stock
options were granted to Senior Managenent, Directors and enpl oyees/consultants.

No SARs (stock appreciation rights) were granted during this period.

Tabl e No. 10
Stock Option Grants in Fiscal 2006 Ended 12/ 31/ 2006

Per cent age Mar ket Val ue of Securities

Nunber of Exer. Under | yi ng Options

of Tot al Price on Date

Options Options Per Grant Expiration of Grant

Narre G anted Ganted Shar e Dat e Date Per Share

Martin Cotter 1, 500, 000 55.0% $0.15 4/10/2006  4/10/2009 $0. 17
Wes Franklin 0 0. 0%

Neal |verson 100, 000 4.0% $0.15 4/10/2006  4/10/2009 $0. 17

TOTAL 2,725,000 100. 0%

Options/ SARs Exercised During The Mdst Recently Conpl eted Fiscal Year

During the nost recently conpleted fiscal year, 625,000 stock options were
exercised by Senior Managenent, Directors and/or enployees/consultants;
1, 195,000 stock options expired unexercised or were cancelled. No SARs (stock
appreciation rights) were granted/exercised during this period.

The following table gives certain information concerning stock option
exerci ses during Fiscal 2006 by the Conpany’s Senior Managenent and Directors.
It also gives informati on concerning stock option values at 12/31/2006.

Table No. 11
Aggregated Stock Options Exercises in Fiscal 2006
Fi scal Yearend Unexercised Stock Options
Fi scal Yearend Stock Option Val ues
Seni or Managenent/Directors

Nurber Val ue of Unexerci sed

of Nunber of I n-the Money

Shar es Unexerci sed Options Opti ons at

Acquired Aggregate at Fiscal Yearend Fi scal Yearend

on Val ue Exer ci sabl e/ Exer ci sabl e/

Narme Exerci se Real i zed Unexer ci sabl e Unexer ci sabl e
Martin Cotter 0 $0 1,500, 000/ nil $ni |/ $ni
Wes Franklin 0 $0 300, 000/ nil $ni |/ $ni
Neal |verson 100, 000 $15, 000 200, 000/ nil $ni |/ $ni
Subt ot al 100, 000 $15, 000 2, 000, 000/ nil $nil/ $ni
O hers 525, 000 $78, 750 1, 880, 000/ nil $ni |/ $ni
TOTAL 625, 000 $93, 750 3, 000, 000/ ni | $nil/ $ni
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Stock Options. The Conpany nay grant stock options to Directors, Senior
Managenent and enpl oyees. Refer to ITEM #6.E., “Share Ownership” and Table
No. 9, No. 10, No. 11, and No. 12 for infornmation about stock options.

Change of Control Renuneration. The Conpany has no plans or arrangenents in
respect of renuneration received or that may be received by Executive Oficers
of the Conpany in Fiscal 2007 to conpensate such officers in the event of
term nation of enploynment (as a result of resignation, retirenent, change of
control) or a change of responsibilities followi ng a change of control, where
t he val ue of such conpensati on exceeds US$100, 000 per Seni or Management.

Q her Conpensati on. No  Seni or Managenent / Di r ect or received “other
conpensation” in excess of the |esser of US$25, 000 or 10% of such officer's
cash conpensation, and all Senior Managenent/Directors as a group did not
receive other conpensation which exceeded US$25,000 tines the nunber of
persons in the group or 10% of the conpensation, other than disclosed in Table
No. 11 and | TEM #7. B.

Bonus/ Profit Shari ng/ Non-Cash Conpensati on. Except for the stock option
program di scussed in | TEM #6.E., the Conpany has no material bonus or profit
sharing plans pursuant to which cash or non-cash conpensation is or may be
paid to the Conpany's Directors or Senior Managenent.

Pensi on/ Retirenent Benefits. No funds have been set aside or accrued by the
Conpany since incorporation to provide pension, retirenent or simlar benefits
for Directors or Seni or Managenent.

Witten Managenent Agreenents
--- No Disclosure Necessary ---

6.C. Board Practices

Al directors hold office until the next neeting of the shareholders of the
Conpany unless they resign or are renmpved in accordance with the Conpany’s
Articles. Senior Managenent are appointed to serve at the discretion of the
Board of Directors. The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee of the
Board schedul e regul ar neetings over the course of the year.

The fundamental objective of the Board is to ensure that it operates in a
fashion that nmaxim zes shareholder value over the long term The Board’s
duties and responsibilities are all carried out in a manner consistent with
that fundanental objective. The principal duty and responsibility of the
Board is to oversee the nmnagenent and operations of the Conpany, with the
day-t o-day managenent of the business and affairs of the Conpany del egated by
the Board to the President/CEO and other Seni or Managenent.

The Board' s responsibilities include overseeing the conduct of the Conpany’'s
busi ness, providing |eadership and direction to its nanagenent, and setting
pol i ci es. Strategic direction for the Conpany is developed through the
Board’'s annual planning process. Through this process, the Board adopts the
operating plan for the comng vyear, and nonitors nmanagenent’s progress
relative to that plan through a regular reporting and revi ew process.

The Board has delegated to the President/CEO and other Senior Managenent
responsibility for the day-to-day managenent of the business of the Conpany.
Matters of policy and issues outside the nornmal course of business are brought
before the Board for its review and approval, along with all matters dictated
by statute and legislation requiring Board review and approval. The
Presi dent/ CEO and Seni or Managenent review the Conpany’s progress in relation
to the current operating plan at in-person and telephone-conference Board
neeti ngs. The Board neets on a regular basis with and w thout nanagenent
present. Fi nanci al, operational and strategic issues facing the Conpany are
revi ewed, nonitored and approved at the Board neetings.
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6.C.1. Terns of Office. Refer to |ITEMG6. A 1.
6.C.2. Directors’ Service Contracts. - No Disclosure Necessary -

6.C.3. Board of Director Committees.

The Conpany only has an Audit Conmttee, which recommends to the Board of
Directors the engagenment of the independent auditors of the Conpany and
reviews with the independent auditors the scope and results of the Company’s
audits, the Conpany’'s internal accounting controls, and the professiona
services furnished by the independent auditors to the Conpany. The Audit
Conmittee met four tines in Fiscal 2006 and has met twi ce during Fiscal 2007-
t o- dat e.

Multilateral Instrument 52-110 of the Canadi an Securities Administrators (“M
52-110") requires the Conpany, as a “venture issuer” to disclose annually in
its Information Circular certain information concerning the constitution of
its audit conmittee and its relationship with its independent auditor, as set
forth in the foll ow ng:

The audit committee is chartered as a conmmittee of the Board of Directors of
t he Conpany that is independent of the Company’s managenment and represents the
interests of the Company’s sharehol ders.

The audit committee is authorized by the board of directors to:

(a) oversee the process of selecting/appointing the Conpany’ s external auditor

(b) oversee the conduct of the audit, and

(c) have primary responsibility for the relationship between the Conpany and
its external auditor.

The audit conmittee's responsibilities include:

(a) take reasonable steps, at the tine the auditor’s appointnment is under
consideration, to ensure that the auditor is independent of managenent of
t he Conpany in accordance with applicabl e standards,

(b) determ ne whether the audit fees charged by the auditor appear adequate in
relation to the work required to support an audit opinion, wthout regard
to fees that might be paid to the auditor for other services,

(c) meet with the auditor, regularly and when ot herw se appropriate, w thout
management present to determ ne whether there are any contentious issues
bet ween the auditor and managenent relating to the Conpany’s financia
di scl osure and, if so, whether those issues have been resolved to the
auditor’s satisfaction,

(d) establish, and monitor conpliance with, the Conpany’s policies regarding:

(i) the auditor’s providing services beyond scope of the Conpany’s audit,
(ii) the Company’s hiring individuals fornerly enpl oyed by the auditor to
fill senior officer positions of the Conpany, and

(e) prepare annually a report describing the steps it has taken to ensure that
the auditor is independent of nmanagenment of the Conpany, including:

(i) the policies and procedures followed so that any contracts for
non-audit services to be provided by the auditor do not conprom se
t he auditor’s independence, and

(ii) the nature of any non-audit service contracts entered into and the
amount of the related fees.
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The Conpany’s audit conmittee is conprised of three directors: Martin Cotter
Wes Franklin, and Neal Iverson. Al audit conmmttee nenbers are “financially
literate” (as defined in M 52-110) and only Martin Cotter, the President, is
not “independent”.

Since the commencenent of the Conpany’'s nost recently conpleted financial
year, the Conpany’s Board of Directors has not failed to adopt a
recommendation of the audit committee to nonminate or conpensate an externa
audi tor.

Since the effective date of M 52-110, the Conpany has not relied on the
exenptions contained in sections 2.4 or 8 of M 52-110. Section 2.4 provides
an exenption fromthe requirenents that the audit committee nust pre-approve
all non-audit services to be provided by the auditor, where the total anount
of fees related to the non-audit services are not expected to exceed 5% of the
total fees payable to the auditor in the fiscal year in which the non-audit
services were provided.

Section 8 permits a conpany to apply to a securities regulatory authority for
an exenption fromthe requirenents of M 52-110, in whole or in part.

The audit committee has not adopted specific policies and procedures for the
engagerment of non-audit services. Subject to the requirenents of M 52-110
t he engagenent of non-audit services is considered by the Conpany’'s Board of
Directors, and where applicable the audit commttee, on a case-by-case basis.

The Conpany is relying on the exenption provided by section 6.1 of M 52-110
that provides that the Conpany, as a venture issuer, is not required to conply
with Part 3 (Conposition of the Audit Conmttee) and Part 5 (Reporting
ol igations) of M 52-110.

6.D. Enpl oyees

As of 5/31/2007, the Conmpany had two enployees, including two Senior
Managenent. As of 12/31/2006, 12/31/2005, and 12/31/2004, there were two, two
and four enployees (including the two Senior Managenent), respectively. None
of the Conpany's enpl oyees are covered by collective bargai ni ng agreenents.
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6. E. Share Ownership

Table No. 12 Ilists, as of 5/31/2007, Directors/Senior Managenent who
beneficially own the Conpany's voting securities and the anmount of Conpany's
voting securities owned by the Directors and Executive Oficers as a group
Table No. 11 also includes all persons/conpanies (none) where the Conpany is
aware that they have 5% or greater beneficial interest in the Conpany’'s
securities.

Tabl e No. 12
Shar ehol di ngs of Directors and Executive Oficers
Shar ehol di ngs of 5% Shar ehol ders

Title Amount and Nat ure Per cent

of of Benefi ci al of
d ass Nane of Beneficial Oaner Owner shi p Class #
Conmon Martin P. Cotter (1) 6, 896, 666 15. 8%
Conmon Neal Iverson (2) 200, 000 0. 4%
Conmon Wes Franklin 1, 300, 000 3. 0%
Total Directors/ O ficers/5% Sharehol ders 7,296, 666 19. 2%

(1) 1,500,000 represent currently exercisable stock options.
1, 000, 000 represent currently exercisable warrants.
(2) 200, 000 represent currently exercisable stock options.
(3) 300, 000 represent currently exercisable stock options.
# Based on 43,708,792 shares outstanding as of 5/31/2007 and share purchase
warrants and stock options held by each beneficial holder exercisable
wi thin sixty days.

37



Stock Options. The terns of incentive options grantable by the Conpany are
done in accordance with the rules and policies of the TSX Venture Exchange and
the British Colunmbia Securities Conm ssion, including the nunber of common
shares under option, the exercise price and expiry date of such options, and
any anendnments thereto. The Conmpany adopted a formal witten stock option
plan (the "Stock Option Plan") on 6/15/2004.

The principal purposes of the Conmpany’'s stock option program are to (a)
pronbte a proprietary interest in the Conpany anong the officers, directors
and enpl oyees of the Conpany and its affiliates, (b) retain and attract the
qualified officers, directors and enpl oyees the Conpany requires, (c) provide
a long-term incentive element in overall conpensation, and (d) pronote the
long-termprofitability of the Conpany.

The Stock Option Plan provides that stock options may be granted to directors,
senior officers, enployees and consultants of the Conpany and nmanagenent

conpany enpl oyees. For the purposes of the Stock Option Plan, the terns
“enpl oyees”, “consultants” and “nmanagenent conpany enployees” have the
neani ngs set out in TSX Venture Exchange Policy 4.4. In addition, the term

“director” is defined in TSX Venture Exchange Policy 4.4 to include directors,
seni or of ficers and managenment conpany enpl oyees.

Under the Stock Option Plan, the Conpany’s board of directors (the “Board”)
may, from time to tine, designate a director or other senior officer or
enpl oyee of the Conpany as adnministrator (the “Admnistrator”) for the
purposes of adnministering the Plan. Currently, the Administrator is the
Corporate Secretary of the Conpany.

The Plan provides for the issuance of stock options to acquire at any tine up
to a maxinumof a "rolling" 10% of the issued and outstandi ng conmon shares of

the Conpany (subject to standard anti-dilution adjustnents). If a stock
option expires or otherwise termnates for any reason w thout having been
exercised in full, the nunber of comon shares reserved for issuance under
that expired or termnated stock option shall again be available for the
purposes of the Plan. Any stock option outstanding when the Plan is
termnated will remain in effect until it is exercised or it expires. The

Plan provides that it is solely within the discretion of the Board to
det erm ne who shoul d receive stock options and in what anounts, subject to the
foll owi ng conditions:

(a) options will be non-assignable and non-transferable except that they wll
be exercisable by the personal representative of the option holder in the
event of the option holder’s death;

(b) options may be exercisable for a maxi num of five years fromgrant date;

(c) options to acquire no nore than 5% of the issued shares of the Conmpany may
be granted to any one individual in any 12 nonth peri od;

(d) options to acquire no nore than 2% of the issued shares of the Conmpany may
be granted to any one consultant in any 12 nonth period;

(e) options to acquire no nore than an aggregate of 2% of the issued shares of
t he Conpany may be granted to an enpl oyee conducting investor relations
activities (as defined in TSX Venture Exchange Policy 1.1), in any 12
nont h peri od;

(f) options held by an option holder who is a director, enployee, consultant
or managenent conpany enpl oyee must expire within 90 days after the option
hol der ceases to be a director, enployee, consultant or nmanagenent conpany
enpl oyee;

(g) options held by an option holder who is engaged in investor relations
activities must expire within 30 days after the option hol der ceases to be
enpl oyed by the Conpany to provide investor relations activities; and

(h) in the event of an option holder’s death, the option holder’'s persona
representative may exercise any portion of the option holder’s vested
out st andi ng options for one year followi ng the option hol der’s death.
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The Stock Option Plan provides that other terns and conditions may be attached
to a particular stock option, such terns and conditions to be referred to in a
schedule attached to the option certificate. Stock options granted to
directors, senior officers, enployees or consultants will vest when granted
unl ess otherwi se determned by the Board on a case by case basis, other than
stock options granted to consultants perfornming investor relations activities,
which will vest in stages over 12 nonths with no nore than one-fourth of the
options vesting in any three nonth period.

In addition, wunder the Stock Option Plan a stock option wll expire
imediately in the event a director or senior officer ceases to be a director
or senior officer of the Conpany as a result of (i) ceasing to neet the
qual i fications under the Conpany Act (British Colunmbia), (ii) the passing of a
special resolution by the shareholders or (iii) an order made by a regul atory
authority. A stock option wll also expire imediately in the event an
enpl oyee ceases to be an enployee as a result of termination for cause or an
enpl oyee or consultant ceases to be an enployee or consultant as a result of
an order nade by a regulatory authority.

The price at which an option holder nay purchase a common share upon the
exercise of a stock option will be as set forth in the option certificate
issued in respect of such option and in any event will not be |less than the
di scounted market price of the Conpany’s common shares as of the date of the
grant of the stock option (the “Award Date”). The market price of the
Conpany’s comon shares for a particular Award Date will typically be the
closing trading price of the Conpany’s comobn shares on the day inmmediately
preceding the Award Date, or otherwise in accordance with the terns of the
Stock Option Plan. Di scounted narket price neans the nmarket price less a
di scount of up to 25% if the market price is $0.50 or less; up to 20%if the
market price is between $2.00 and $0.51; and up to 15%if the nmarket price is
greater than $2.00.

In no case will a stock option be exercisable at a price |less than the ninimum
prescribed by each of the organized trading facilities or the applicable
regul atory authorities that would apply to the award of the stock option in
qguesti on.

The Stock Option Plan also provides that (a) disinterested sharehol der
approval will be obtained for any reduction in the exercise price of an option
held by an insider of the Conpany and (b) options cannot be granted to
enpl oyees, consultants or nmanagenent conpany enployees that are not bona fide
enpl oyees, consultants or managenent conpany enpl oyees, as the case may be.

Conmon shares will not be issued pursuant to stock options granted under the
Stock Option Plan until they have been fully paid for by the option hol der.
The Conpany will not provide financial assistance to option holders to assist

themin exercising their stock options.
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The nanmes and titles of the Directors/Executive Oficers of the Conpany to
whom outstanding stock options have been granted and the nunber of common
shares subject to such options are set forth in Table No. 13 as of 5/31/2007,
as well as the nunber of options granted to Directors and all enployees as a
group.
Tabl e No. 13
St ock Options Qutstanding

Nunber of Shares of CDN$

Conmon Exer. Grant  Expir’'n
Name St ock Price Dat e Dat e
Martin P. Cotter 1, 500, 000 $0. 15 4/10/06 4/10/09
Neal |verson 100, 000 $0. 15 10/ 31/05 9/01/07
Neal |verson 100, 000 $0. 15 4/ 10/ 06 4/10/09
Wes Franklin 300, 000 $0. 15 8/ 11/05 9/01/07
Total O ficers/Directors 2, 000, 000
Enpl oyees/ Consul t ant s 1, 900, 000
Total O ficers/Directors/Etc. 3, 900, 000

ITEM 7. NMAJOR SHAREHOLDERS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTI ONS

7.A.  Mpj or Sharehol ders

7.A.1.a. Holdings By Mjor Sharehol ders
Refer to | TEM #6. E. and Table No. 11.

7.A.1.b. Significant Changes in Mjor Sharehol ders’ Hol di ngs

The participation in private placenments of equity by the Conpany and exercise
of stock options/share purchase warrants has |ead over the |ast several year
to sonme significant changes in the holdings of mmjor shareholders; table
reflects direct/indirect holdings of comobn shares (excluding stock options
and warrants), refer to Table No. 11 for additional infornmation.

Shar es Shar es Shar es

Omned Omned Omned

12/ 31/ 2005 12/31/2004 12/31/2003

Martin P. Cotter 4,296, 666 4,296, 666 3, 296, 666

7.A. 1. c. Different Voting Rights. The Conpany’s nmjor sharehol ders do not
have different voting rights.
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7.A 2. Canadi an Share Ownershi p. On 4/ 23/2007, the Conpany’s sharehol ders
list showed 43,708,792 common shares outstanding, wth 300 registered

sharehol ders. 77 of these shareholders were U S. residents, holding 6,401, 397
conmon shares (representing about 15% of the issued/outstanding shares); 222
regi stered shareholders were resident in Canada, holding 34,699,281 comon
shares (79%, and nine registered shareholders were resident in other
countries, holding 2,658,114 common shares (6% .

The Conpany has researched the indirect holding by depository institutions and
other financial institutions; based on this research and other research into
the indirect holdings of other institutions, the Conpany believes that it has
approxi mately 1000 beneficial owners of its common shares.

7.A 3. Control of Conpany. The Conpany is a publicly-owned Canadian
corporation, the shares of which are owned by U S. residents, Canadian
residents and other foreign residents. The Conpany is not controlled by any
foreign governnent or other person(s) except as described in ITEM #4.A ,
“Hi story and Devel opnment of the Conpany”, and | TEM #6. E., “Share Oanershi p”

7.A. 4. Change of Control of Conpany Arrangenents.
--— No Disclosure Necessary —--

7.B. Related Party Transactions

Martin Cotter, President/Director
During Fiscal 2006/2005/2004, the Conpany paid/accrued to Martin Cotter fees
totalling $80,875, $72,000, and $72, 000, respectively.

At 12/31/2006 and 12/31/2005, due to related parties included $nil and $16, 571
owing to Martin Cotter.

Q her than as disclosed above and in prior Annual Reports on Form 20-F, there
have been no transactions since 12/31/2003, or proposed transactions, which
have materially affected or will materially affect the Conpany in which any
director, executive officer, or beneficial holder of nore than 10% of the
out standing conmon stock, or any of their respective relatives, spouses,
associates or affiliates has had or will have any direct or naterial indirect
interest. Managenment believes the transactions referenced above were on terns
at least as favorable to the Conpany as the Conpany could have obtained from
unaffiliated parties.

7.C. Interests of Experts and Counse

None of the naned experts or counselors enployed on a contingent basis owns
shares in the conpany or its subsidiaries or has a material, direct or
i ndirect economic interest in the Conpany.
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| TEM 8. FI NANCI AL | NFORVATI ON

8.A. Consolidated Statements and O her Financial |Information

The Company's financial statenents are stated in Canadian Dollars (CDN$) and
are prepared in accordance with Canadi an GAAP, the application of which, in
the case of the Conpany, confornms in all material respects for the periods
presented with United States GAAP, except as discussed in footnotes to the
financial statenments.

The financial statenents as required under |TEM #17 are attached hereto and
found imedi ately following the text of this Annual Report. The audit reports
of Davidson & Company LLP, Chartered Accountants, are included herein
i medi ately preceding the financial statenents and schedul es.

Audi t ed Fi nancial Statenents
for Fiscal 2006, Fiscal 2005, and Fiscal 2004, Ended Decenber 31st

8.A. 7. LlLegal/Arbitration Proceedings

The Directors and the nanagenent of the Conpany know of no material, active or
pendi ng, |egal proceedings against them nor is the Conpany involved as a
plaintiff in any material proceeding or pending litigation.

The Directors and the nanagenent of the Conpany know of no active or pending
proceedi ngs agai nst anyone that might materially adversely affect an interest
of the Conpany.

8.B. Significant Changes

No undi scl osed significant change has occurred since the date of the annual
financial statenents, and/or since the date of the nbst recent interim
financial statenent.
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ITEM 9. THE OFFER AND LI STI NG

9.A. 4. Common Share Trading Infornation

The Conpany’s common shares began trading on the OTC Bulletin Board on
3/ 19/ 2002 under the synbol PRRPF.OB. Table No. 14 lists the volune of trading
and high, low and closing sales prices on the OIC Bulletin Board for the
Conpany's comon shares for: the last six nonths, the last nine fisca
quarters, and the last five fiscal years.

Tabl e No. 14
OrC Bul I etin Board
Conmon Shares Trading Activity

- Sal es -
Peri od US Dol |l ars
Ended Vol une Hi gh Low d osing
Mont hl'y
5/ 31/ 2007 362, 000 $0. 11 0. 08 $0. 10
4/ 30/ 2007 225, 160 0.13 0. 08 0.10
3/ 31/ 2007 705, 381 0.14 0. 08 0.12
2/ 28/ 2007 733, 706 0.13 0.10 0.12
1/ 31/ 2007 737, 220 0.13 0. 08 0.13
12/ 31/ 2006 594, 721 0.14 0.11 0.13
Quarterly
3/ 31/ 2007 2,176, 307 $0. 14 0. 08 $0.12
12/ 31/ 2006 1,771,134 0.17 0.10 0.13
9/ 30/ 2006 3, 085, 165 0.21 0.13 0.16
6/ 30/ 2006 4,252,224 0.21 0.13 0. 20
3/ 31/ 2006 5, 681, 249 0.24 0.13 0.16
12/ 31/ 2005 2,766, 408 0.17 0. 096 0.14
9/ 30/ 2005 4,914, 256 0. 22 0. 08 0. 15
6/ 30/ 2005 2,026, 994 0.16 0. 07 0.11
3/ 31/ 2005 2,689, 713 0. 25 0.14 0. 15
Yearly
12/ 31/ 2006 14,789, 772 $0. 24 0.10 $0. 13
12/ 31/ 2005 12, 397, 371 0.22 0. 07 0.14
12/ 31/ 2004 16, 028, 281 0. 40 0.10 0.21
12/ 31/ 2003 8,617, 379 0. 26 0. 045 0. 05
12/ 31/ 2002 1, 340, 750 0.16 0.02 0. 035
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The Conpany's comobn shares trade on the TSX Venture Exchange in Toronto,
Ontario, under the synbol "PSH. V'. The initial public offering was effective
on the Vancouver Stock Exchange under the auspices of the British Colunbia
Securities Comm ssion in August 1980 under a forner nanme, "Barbi Lake Copper
M nes Limted"

Table No. 13 lists the volune of trading and high, low and closing sales
prices on the TSX Venture Exchange (Canadian Venture Exchange prior to
8/ 2/ 1002 and the Vancouver Stock Exchange prior to Novenber 1999) for actua
trades of common shares of the Conpany for the last six nonths, last nine
fiscal quarters, and last five fiscal years.

Tabl e No. 13
TSX Venture Exchange
Conmmon Shares Trading Activity

- Sal es -
Peri od Canadi an Dol | ars
Ended Vol une Hi gh Low d osing
Mont hl y
5/ 31/ 2007 619, 100 $0.12  $0.10 $0. 10
4/ 30/ 2007 381, 000 0.13 0.11 0.12
3/ 31/ 2007 1, 396, 600 0.15 0.11 0.13
2/ 28/ 2007 1, 193, 400 0.16 0.13 0.13
1/ 31/ 2007 859, 600 0.15 0.13 0.14
12/ 31/ 2006 1, 066, 000 0.14 0.13 0.14
Quarterly
3/ 31/ 2007 3,422, 600 $0.16  $0.11 $0. 13
12/ 31/ 2006 2,874,700 0.17 0.13 0.14
9/ 30/ 2006 3, 505, 100 0.23 0.14 0.17
6/ 30/ 2006 5, 669, 000 0.23 0.16 0.22
3/ 31/ 2006 11, 087, 800 0.26 0.16 0.18
12/ 31/ 2005 2,790, 300 0.19 0.12 0.19
9/ 30/ 2005 9, 570, 100 0.24 0.11 0.17
6/ 30/ 2005 4,042, 600 0.19 0.09 0.12
3/ 31/ 2005 6, 365, 200 0.29 0.16 0.18
Yearly
12/ 31/ 2006 23, 136, 600 0.18 0.13 0.14
12/ 31/ 2005 22,768, 200 0.26 0.09 0.18
12/ 31/ 2004 40, 933, 200 0.50 0.15 0.28
12/ 31/ 2003 16, 468, 982 0.33 0. 07 0.21
12/ 31/ 2002 8,107, 321 0.30 0.05 0.09
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The TSX Venture Exchange
The TSX Venture Exchange is a result of the acquisition by the Toronto Stock

Exchange of the Canadi an Venture Exchange (“CDNX’) from its nenber firns on
8/ 1/ 2001. The CDNX resulted from the merger between the Vancouver Stock
Exchange and the Al berta Stock Exchange that took place on 11/29/1999, to form
the CDNX. The TSX Venture Exchange currently operates as a conplenentary but
i ndependent exchange fromits parent, the Toronto Stock Exchange.

The initial roster of the CDNX was nade up of venture conpanies previously
listed on the Vancouver Stock Exchange or the Al berta Stock Exchange and | ater
i ncorporated junior listings from the Mntreal Stock Exchange, the W nnipeg
St ock Exchange, and the CDN Over-The-Counter Market. The TSX Venture Exchange
is a venture narket as conpared to the Toronto Stock Exchange that is Canada’s
senior market and the Mntreal Exchange that 1is Canada’'s nmarket for
derivatives products.

The TSX Venture Exchange currently has five service centers: Calgary, Toronto,
Vancouver, W nnipeg and Mbontreal. These service centers provide corporate
finance, surveillance and narketing expertise. The corporate office for the
TSX Venture Exchange is located in Calgary and the operations office is
| ocated in Vancouver.

The TSX Venture Exchange is a self-regulating organization owned and operated
by the Toronto Stock Exchange, which in turn is owned by its nenber brokerage
firms. It is governed by representatives of nenber firnms and the public.

Organi zationally, the TSX Venture Exchange is conprised of seven business
areas: Corporate Finance Services, Trading Services and Market Information
Services, Conpliance, WMarketing, Technology, Corporate Affairs and Human
Resour ces.

The TSX Venture Exchange acts as a business |ink between TSX nmenbers, |isted
conpani es and investors. TSX Venture Exchange policies and procedures are
designed to accommpdate conpanies still in their formtive stages and

recogni ze those that are nore established. Li stings are predominately snal
and nedi um si zed conpani es.

Investors in Canada are protected by the Canadian |nvestor Protection Fund
(“CIPF"). The CIPF is a private trust fund established to protect custoners in
the event of the insolvency of a nenber of any of the following self-
regul atory organi zations: the TSX Venture Exchange; the Montreal Exchange; the
Toronto Stock Exchange; the Toronto Futures Exchange; and the |[nvestnent
Deal ers Associ ati on of Canada.

Post-trade nonitoring of market activity occurs in the market surveillance
department. Sophisticated software analyses trade data from TRADETSX to
detect possible market inproprieties. A variety of surveillance and
investigative tools allow the TSX Venture Exchange to perform electronic
mar ket nonitoring and trade reviews.

The surveillance departnent is also responsible for nonitoring and review ng
listed conpany activities and detecting breaches of the listing policies or
the listing agreenent. Mar ket surveillance and listed conpany surveillance
activities are closely coordinated.

9.C. Markets Identified
The commmon shares trade on the TSX Venture Stock Exchange in Canada and on the
OTC Bul letin Board in the United States. Refer to | TEM #9. A 4.
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| TEM 10. ADDI TI ONAL | NFORMATI ON

10.B. Menorandum and Articles of Association

Fol | owt ng sharehol der approval of a “special resolution” at the 5/31/2005
Speci al and Annual Meeting of sharehol ders, the Conpany adopted a new set of
Articles. The Conpany undertook this action to bring the Conpany into
conpliance with the new, updated British Colunbia Corporations Act. The
principle changes include: the reduction of the required vote for a “special
resolution” fromthree-quarters to two-thirds; Directors are able to approve a
nane change for the Conpany wi thout a sharehol der vote; Directors can set the
| ocation of the Annual General Meeting outside British Colunbia, Canada; and
del eted the requirenment for a pro rate purchase of the shares of the Conpany.

In addition, the new British Col unbia Corporations Act renpved the requirenent
that a mpjority of Conpany directors be resident in British Col unbia.

Refer to discussion in Fiscal 2001 Annual Report on Form 20-F, for nore
i nfornmati on about the Conpany’s articles.

10.C. Material Contracts: --- No Disclosure Necessary ---

10. D. Exchange Controls
Canada has no system of exchange controls. There are no Canadian restrictions

on the repatriation of capital or earnings of a Canadian public conpany to
non-resident investors. There are no laws in Canada or exchange restrictions
affecting the renmttance of dividends, profits, interest, royalties and other
paynments to non-resident holders of the Conpany's securities, except as
di scussed in | TEM 10, “Taxation” bel ow.

Restrictions on Share Oanershi p by Non- Canadi ans

There are no limtations under the laws of Canada or in the organizing
docunents of the Conmpany on the right of foreigners to hold or vote securities
of the Conpany, except that the Investnent Canada Act may require review and
approval by the Mnister of Industry (Canada) of certain acquisitions of

"control" of the Conpany by a "non-Canadi an". The threshold for acquisitions
of control is generally defined as being one-third or nore of the voting
shares of the Conpany. "Non- Canadi an" generally neans an individual who is

not a Canadian citizen, or a corporation, partnership, trust or joint venture
that is ultimately controll ed by non-Canadi ans.

10. E Taxation

The following is a brief summary of some of the principal Canadian federa
i ncome tax consequences to a holder of common shares of the Conpany (a "U.S
Hol der") who deals at arnmis length with the Conpany, holds the shares as
capital property and who, for the purposes of the Incone Tax Act (Canada) (the
"Act") and the Canada — United States Incone Tax Convention (the "Treaty"), is
at all relevant times resident in the United States, is not and is not deened
to be resident in Canada and does not use or hold and is not deened to use or
hold the shares in carrying on a business in Canada. Special rules, which are
not discussed below, nmay apply to a US. Holder that is an insurer that
carries on business in Canada and el sewhere.

This sunmary is of a general nature only and is not, and should not be
interpreted as, legal or tax advice to any particular U S. Holder and no
representation is nade with respect to the Canadi an i ncone tax consequences to
any particular person. Accordingly, US. Holders are urged to consult their
own tax advisors with respect to their particular circunstances.
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Under the Act and the Treaty, a U S. Hol der of comon shares will generally be
subject to a 15% withholding tax on dividends paid or credited or deened by
the Act to have been paid or credited on such shares. The withhol ding tax
rate is 5% where the U S. Holder is a corporation that beneficially owns at
| east 10% of the voting shares of the Conpany and the dividends may be exenpt
from such withholding in the case of some U S. Holders such as qualifying
pensi on funds and chariti es.

In general, a US. Holder wll not be subject to Canadian incone tax on
capital gains arising on the disposition of shares of the Conpany unless (i)
at any tine in the five-year period i mediately preceding the disposition, 25%
or nore of the shares of any class or series of the capital stock of the
Conpany was owned by (or was under option of or subject to an interest of) the
U. S. holder or persons with whomthe U S. holder did not deal at arm s |ength,
and (ii) the value of the conmmon shares of the Conpany at the tinme of the
di sposition derives principally fromreal property (as defined in the Treaty)
situated in Canada. For this purpose, the Treaty defines real property
situated in Canada to include rights to explore for or exploit mneral
deposits and other natural resources situated in Canada, rights to anobunts
conputed by reference to the anmpbunt or value of production from such
resources, certain other rights in respect of natural resources situated in
Canada and shares of a corporation the value of whose shares is derived
principally fromreal property situated in Canada.

The US Internal Revenue Code provides special anti-deferral rules regarding
certain distributions received by US persons with respect to, and sales and
other dispositions (including pledges) of stock of, a passive foreign
i nvest nent comnpany. A foreign corporation, such as the Conmpany, wll be
treated as a passive foreign investrment conpany if 75% or nore of its gross
income is passive incone for a taxable year or if the average percentage of
its assets (by value) that produce, or are held for the production of, passive
income is at least 50% for a taxable year. The Conpany believes that it was
not a passive foreign investnent conpany for the taxable year ended 12/ 31/ 2006
and, furthernore, expects to conduct its affairs in such a manner so that it
will not nmeet the criteria to be considered passive foreign invest nent conpany
in the foreseeable future.

10.H. Docunent on Displ ay
The Conpany’s docunents can be viewed at its North American office, |ocated

at: 1687 West Broadway, #200, Vancouver, British Colunbia, Canada V6J 1X2.
The Conpany files reports, registration statements and other information with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC'). The Conpany’s reports,
registration statenents and other information can be inspected on the SEC s
website at www. sec.gov and such information can al so be inspected and copies
ordered at the public reference facilities mmintained by the SEC at the
following location: 100 F Street, N E., Washington, D.C.  20549.

10.1. Subsidiary Infornation
The Conpany has one wholly-owed subsidiary, Portrush Petroleum (US)
Corporation, incorporated in Mchigan, USA on Novenber 17, 2003.
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I TEM 11. QUANTI TATI VE AND QUALI TATI VE DI SCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RI SK

The Conpany has not entered into any activities in derivative financial
i nstrunments, other financial instrunments, or derivative commpdity instrunents.
The Conpany’s financial assets in the form of cash and cash equivalents are
held in short terminterest-bearing deposits at institutions with high credit
quality ratings.

The reporting currency of our consolidated financial statenments is the
Canadi an Dol | ar. Revenues from our operations outside of Canada represented
100% of our revenues in Fiscal 2005/2004/2003, all located in the United
States and recorded in U S. Dollars. As a result, we enter into transactions
with customers and suppliers in US. Dollars. W are exposed to market risks
from changes in foreign currency exchange rates that may affect our results of
operations and financial condition and, consequently, our fair value. W do
not enter into forward exchange contracts. W nmanage these risks through
internal risk managenent policies. Many of our strategies are based on
historical trading patterns and correl ati ons and our nmanagenent's expectations
of future events. However, these strategies may not be fully effective in al
mar ket environments or against all types of risks. Unexpected narket
devel opnents may affect our risk managenment strategies during this tine, and
unanti ci pated devel opnents coul d inpact our risk managenent strategies in the
future. If any of the variety of instrunents and strategies we utilize are
not effective, we nmay incur | osses.

The oil and gas industry is exposed to a variety of risks including the
uncertainty of finding and recovering new econom c reserves, the perfornmance
of hydrocarbon reservoirs, securing markets for production, comvodity prices,
interest rate fluctuations, potential damage to or nmalfunction of equipnent
and changes to inconme tax, royalty, environmental or other governnental
regul ations. W mitigate these risks to the extent we are able by:
a. enploying highly-skilled staff and focusing themin areas where they have
a strong know edge base in order to maxi m ze val ue;
b. utilizing conpetent, professional consultants as support teams to Conpany
staff;
c. performng careful and thorough geophysical, geol ogical and engi neering
anal yses of each prospect;
d. using current, cost-effective and where feasible, |eading-edge
t echnol ogy;

e. focusing on a linted nunber of core properties;

f. striving to be a | owcost producer to naximnze field netbacks;

g. naintaining a balanced portfolio of sales contracts;

h. staying inforned about industry changes and trends through appropriate
associ ati on nenbershi ps, publications, subscriptions and conferences.

Qur future financial performance remains closely linked to hydrocarbon

commodity prices, which can be influenced by many factors including gl obal and

regi onal supply and demand, worldw de political events and weather. These

factors, anong others, can result in a high degree of price volatility.

W currently have no hedge positions, however, we nanage our potentia
exposure to comodity price volatilities through diversification as follows:
a. Qur oil/gas portfolio is split between two prinmary narkets:
sout hern M chigan and sout heast Texas; and
b. Commodity mix: our sales portfolio is conprised of natural gas, crude oi
and natural gas liquids. Crude oil and natural gas liquids are sold at
prices with volatilities that differ fromthose of natural gas.
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I TEM 12. DESCRI PTI ON OF SECURI TI ES OTHER THAN EQUI TY SECURI Tl ES

12. A. Debt Securities --- No Disclosure Necessary --

12.B. Warrants and Rights --- No Disclosure Necessary --

12.C. O her Securities --- No Disclosure Necessary --

12.D.  Anerican Depository Shares --- No Disclosure Necessary --
PART 1 |

| TEM 13. DEFAULTS, DI VI DEND ARREARAGES AND DELI NQUENCI ES
--- No Disclosure Necessary ---

| TEM 14. MATERIAL MODI FI CATIONS TO THE RI GHTS OF SECURI TY
HOLDERS AND USE OF PROCEEDS - No Di scl osure Necessary —

| TEM 15. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

At the end of fiscal year ended 12/31/2006 (the “Evaluation Date”), under the
supervision and with the participation of the Conpany's managenent, including
its Chief Executive Oficer and Chief Financial Oficer, the Conpany eval uated
the effectiveness of the design and operation of its disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15e under the Exchange Act). Based upon
that evaluation, the Conpany’s nanagenent, including the Chief Executive
Oficer and Chief Financial Oficer, concluded that, as of the Evaluation
Date, concluded that the Conpany’s disclosure controls and procedures were
effective to ensure that information the Conpany is required to disclose in
the reports that it files or submts wth the Securities and Exchange
Conmi ssion under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed,
sunmari zed and reported, within the tine periods specified in the Conmm ssion's
rules and forns, and to ensure that information required to be disclosed by
the Conpany in the reports that it files or subnmits under the Exchange Act is
accunul ated and comunicated to the Conpany's nmanagenent, including its
princi pal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to
allow tinely decisions regardi ng required disclosure.

The Conpany’s nanagenent, including the Chief Executive Oficer and Chief
Financial Oficer, identified no change in the Conpany’s internal control over
financial reporting that occurred during the Conpany’'s Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, 2006 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the Conmpany’s internal control over financial reporting.

49



| TEM 16. RESERVED

| TEM 16A. AUDI T COWM TTEE FI NANCI AL EXPERT

The Conpany does not have an “audit conmttee financial expert” serving on its
audit conmittee. The Conpany’s Audit Committee consists of an unrelated
director, the President/CEO of the Conpany, and the Corporate Secretary of the
Conpany, all of whom are both financially literate and very know edgeable
about the Conpany's affairs. Because the Conpany’s structure and operations
are straightforward, the Conpany does not find it necessary to augnent its
Board with a financial expert.

| TEM 16B. CODE OF ETHI CS

The Conpany has not adopted a witten "code of ethics” that neets the new
United States' Sarbanes-Oxley standards; the Board of Directors believes that
exi sting Canadi an standards and procedures is adequate for its purposes. The
Conpany has not seen any need to adopt a witten code of ethics on the basis
that its corporate culture effectively deters wongdoing and pronotes honest
and ethical conduct, full, fair and accurate, tinely, and understandable
disclosure in reports and docunents, the conpliance wth applicable
governmental laws, rules and regulations; the pronpt internal reporting of
vi ol ations of the code; and accountability for adherence to the code.

ltem 16C. PRI NCI PAL ACCOUNTI | NG FEES AND SERVI CES

The audit commttee is directly responsible for the appointnent, conpensation
and oversight of auditors; the audit committee has in place procedures for
recei ving conplaints and concerns about accounting and auditing natters; and
has the authority and the funding to engage independent counsel and other
out si de advi sors.

The Audit Committee nmmy delegate to one or nore designated nenbers of the
Audit Conmittee the authority to grant pre-approvals required by this policy /
procedure. The decisions of any Audit Committee nenber to whom authority is
del egated to pre-approve a service shall be presented to the full Audit
Conmittee at its next schedul ed neeting.

In accordance with the requirenents of the US Sarbanes-Oxl ey Act of 2002 and
rules issued by the Securities and Exchange Conmission, we introduced a
procedure for the review and pre-approval of any services performed by
Davi dson & Conpany LLP, including audit services, audit related services, tax
services and other services. The procedure requires that all proposed
engagenments of Davidson & Conpany LLP for audit and pernmitted non-audit
services are submtted to the finance and audit conmittee for approval prior
to the begi nning of any such services.

Fees, including reinbursenents for expenses, for professional services
rendered by Davi dson & Conpany LLP to the Conpany are detail ed bel ow.

Fi scal Year ended Decenber 31, 2006 and 2005 Fi scal Year Fi scal Year
Princi pal Accountant Fees and Services 2006 2005
Audit Fees $25, 400 $22, 352
Audit Rel ated Fees 0 0
Tax Fees 10, 000 3, 000

Al Oher Fees 0 0
Tot al $35, 400 $25, 352
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| TEM 16D. EXEMPTI ONS FROM THE LI STI NG STANDARDS FOR AUDI T COWM TTEES
--- No Disclosure Necessary ---

| TEM 16E. PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES BY THE | SSUER AND AFFI LI ATED PURCHASERS
--- No Disclosure Necessary ---

PART 111

| TEM 17. FI NANCI AL STATEMENTS

The Company's financial statenents are stated in Canadian Dollars (CDN$) and
are prepared in accordance with Canadi an GAAP, the application of which, in
the case of the Conpany, confornms in all material respects for the periods
presented with United States GAAP, except as discussed in footnotes to the
financial statenments. The financial statenments as required under |TEM #17 are
attached hereto and found immediately following the text of this Annual
Report . The audit report of Davidson & Conpany LLP, Chartered Accountants,
are included herein i mediately preceding the financial statenents.

Audi ted Fi nancial Statenents
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm dated 3/26/2007
Consol i dat ed Bal ance Sheets at 12/31/2006 and 12/ 31/ 2005
Consol i dated Statements of Operations and Deficit
for the years ended 12/31/2006, 12/31/2005 and 12/31/2004
Consol i dated Statenments of Cash Fl ows
for the years ended 12/31/2006, 12/31/2005 and 12/31/2004
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statenents

| TEM 18. FI NANCI AL STATEMENTS
The Conpany has elected to provide financial statenments pursuant to | TEM #17.

ITEM 19. EXHI BITS
1. Certificates of Incorporation and Name Changes, By-Laws/Articles
--- Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statenment as anended;
Annual Reports on Form 20-F, and Form6-K's ---

2. Instruments defining the rights of holders of equity or debt securities
bei ng regi stered. --- Refer to Exhibit No. 1 ---

3. Voting Trust Agreenents: No Disclosure Necessary
4. Material Contracts:

--- Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statenment as anended;
Annual Reports on Form 20-F, and Form6-K's ---

5. Foreign Patents: No Di scl osure Necessary
6. Earnings Per Share Cal cul ati on: No Di scl osure Necessary
7. Ratio of Earnings To Fixed Charges: No Di scl osure Necessary
8. List of Subsidiaries: No Di scl osure Necessary
9. Statenent Regarding Date of Financial Statements: No Disclosure Necessary
10. Notice Required by Rul 3e 104 of Regul ati on BTR No Di scl osure Necessary
11. Code of Ethics as required by | TEM No. 16: No Di scl osure Necessary

12: The certifications required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a)..(attached)

13. The certifications required by Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) and
Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code (attached)

14. Legal Opinion required by Instruction 3 of ITEM 7B: No Di scl osure Necessary
15. Additional Exhibits:

--- Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statenment as anended;
Annual Reports on Form 20-F, and Form6-K's ---
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PORTRUSH PETROLEUM CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

DECEMBER 31, 2006
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D i%\;l[) S (:)N & C ONIP;%N&? LLP Chartered Accountants A Partnership of Incorporated Professionals

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders of
Portrush Petroleum Corporation

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Portrush Petroleum Corporation as at December 31,
2006 and 2005 and the consolidated statements of operations and deficit and cash flows for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the results of its operations and its cash

flows for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles.

"DAVIDSON & COMPANY LLP"

Vancouver, Canada Chartered Accountants

March 26, 2007

COMMENTS BY AUDITORS FOR U.S. READERS ON CANADA —
U.S. REPORTING DIFFERENCE

In the United States, reporting standards for auditors require the addition of an explanatory paragraph
(following the opinion paragraph) when the financial statements are affected by conditions and events that
cast substantial doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, such as those described
in Note 1 to the financial statements. Our report to the shareholders dated March 26, 2007 is expressed

in accordance with Canadian reporting standards which do not permit a reference to such events and
conditions in the auditors' report when these are adequately disclosed in the financial statements.

"DAVIDSON & COMPANY LLP"

Vancouver, Canada Chartered Accountants
March 26, 2007

A Member of SC INTERNATIONAL

1200 - 609 Granville Street, P.O. Box 10372, Pacific Centre, Vancouver, BC, Canada, V7Y 1G6
Telephone (604) 687-0947 Fax (604) 687-6172
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PORTRUSH PETROLEUM CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

AS AT DECEMBER 31

2006 2005

ASSETS

Current
Cash
Receivables
Prepaids

Advances on oil and gas properties
Oil and gas properties (Note 3)

$ 50,691 $ 189,546

127,873 73,649
22,559 -

201,123 263,195
62,599

1,347,654 1,571,241

$ 1,611,376 $ 1,834,436

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to related parties (Note 6)

Future site restoration

Shareholders' equity

Capital stock (Note 4)
Contributed surplus (Note 4)
Deficit

$ 58616 $ 89,123

- 16,571
58,616 105,694
10,494 10,494
69,110 116,188

13,508,437 13,398,523
486,968 337,747
(12,453,139) (12,018,022)

1,542,266 1,718,248

$ 1,611,376 $ 1,834,436

Nature and continuance of operations (Note 1)

Subsequent event (Note 10)

On behalf of the Board:

“Martin Cotter” Director

“Neal Iverson”

Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PORTRUSH PETROLEUM CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND DEFICIT
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2006 2005 2004

REVENUE

Oil and gas revenue, net of royalties $ 777455 $ 593,598 $ 442,368
DIRECT COSTS

Depletion 399,036 122,269 121,937

Operating expenses 195,070 221,664 145,556

Total direct costs (594,106) (343,933) (267,493)
EXPENSES

Consulting and administration fees 22,882 34,750 107,170

Investor relations 75,208 53,635 164,344

Management fees — related party 80,875 72,000 72,000

Office and miscellaneous 27,161 48,760 83,702

Professional fees 154,858 58,694 60,545

Shareholder costs 16,508 25,633 23,652

Stock-based compensation 205,385 75,193 298,483

Transfer agent and regulatory fees 19,795 25,546 24,981

Travel and promotion 11,977 8,488 33,296

Total expenses (614,649) (402,699) (868,173)
Loss before other items (431,300) (153,034) (693,298)
OTHER ITEMS

Foreign exchange loss (3,817) (7,214) -

Write-off of receivable - - (73,022)

Total other items (3,817) (7,214) (73,022)
Loss for the year (435,117) (160,248) (766,320)
Deficit, beginning of year (12,018,022) (11,857,774) (11,091,454)
Deficit, end of year $(12,453,139) $(12,018,022) $(11,857,774)
Basic and diluted loss per share $ (0.01) $ (0.01) % (0.02)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 43,938,176 41,572,559 33,858,626

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PORTRUSH PETROLEUM CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2006 2005 2004
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss for the year $ (435117) $ (160,248) $ (766,320)
Items not affecting cash:
Depletion 399,036 122,269 121,937
Write-off of receivable - - 73,022
Write-off of accounts payable - (8,215) -
Accrual of management fees - 72,000 72,000
Stock-based compensation expense 205,385 75,193 298,483
Changes in non-cash working capital items:
Increase in receivables (52,305) (5,955) (136,884)
(Increase) decrease in prepaids (22,559) 5,625 (5,625)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities (30,507) (185,772) 25,262
Cash provided by (used in) operating activities 63,933 (85,103) (318,125)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advances from (repaid to) related parties (16,571) (207,031) 21,648
Proceeds from issuance of capital stock 93,750 479,175 1,973,250
Share issuance costs - (24,942) (16,639)
Capital stock purchased for cancellation (40,000) - -
Cash provided by financing activities 37,179 247,202 1,978,259
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Advances on oil and gas properties (62,599) - -
Oil and gas property expenditures (177,368) (47,096) (1,590,572)
Cash used in investing activities (239,967) (47,096) (1,590,572)
Change in cash position during year (138,855) 115,003 69,562
Cash position, beginning of year 189,546 74,543 4,981
Cash position, end of year $ 50,691 $ 189,546 $ 74,543

Supplemental disclosure with respect to cash flows (Note 5)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PORTRUSH PETROLEUM CORPORATION

NOTES

TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

DECEM

BER 31, 2006

NATURE AND CONTINUANCE OF OPERATIONS

The Company is incorporated under the laws of British Columbia and its principal business activity
is the acquiring and developing of oil and gas properties.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles with the assumption that the Company will be able to realize its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business rather than through a process of forced
liquidation. Continued operations of the Company are dependent on the Company's ability to
receive continued financial support, complete public equity financing, or generate profitable
operations in the future. These consolidated financial statements do not include the adjustments
that would be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.

2006 2005

Working capital $ 142,507 $ 157,501

Deficit

(12,453,139) (12,018,022)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its
wholly-owned subsidiary. Significant inter-company transactions have been eliminated on
consolidation.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amount of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenue and expenses during the
year. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Oil and gas properties

The Company follows the full cost method of accounting for oil and natural gas operations,
whereby all costs of exploring for and developing oil and natural gas reserves are capitalized and
accumulated in cost centres on a country-by-country basis. Costs include land acquisition costs,
geological and geophysical charges, carrying charges on non-productive properties and costs of
drilling both productive and non-productive wells. General and administrative costs are not
capitalized other than to the extent of the Company's working interest in operated capital
expenditure programs on which operator's fees have been charged equivalent to standard
industry operating agreements. At December 31, 2006, the Company has not capitalized any
interest, general or administrative costs.
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PORTRUSH PETROLEUM CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

DECEMBER 31, 2006

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd...)

Oil and gas properties (cont'd...)

The costs in each cost centre, including the costs of well equipment, are depleted and
depreciated using the unit-of-production method based on the estimated proved reserves before
royalties. Natural gas reserves and production are converted to equivalent barrels of crude oil
based on relative energy content. The costs of acquiring and evaluating significant unproved
properties are initially excluded from depletion calculations. These unevaluated properties are
assessed periodically to ascertain whether impairment has occurred. When proved reserves are
assigned or the property is considered to be impaired, the cost of the property or the amount of
the impairment is added to costs subject to depletion.

The capitalized costs less accumulated depletion and depreciation in each cost centre are limited
to an amount equal to the estimated future net revenue from proved reserves (based on prices
and costs at the balance sheet date) plus the cost (net of impairments) of unproved properties.
The total capitalized costs less accumulated depletion and depreciation, site restoration provision
and future income taxes of all cost centres is further limited to an amount equal to the future net
revenue from proved reserves plus the cost (net of impairments) of unproved properties of all cost
centres less estimated future site restoration costs, general and administrative expenses,
financing costs and income taxes.

Proceeds from the sale of oil and natural gas properties are applied against capitalized costs, with
no gain or loss recognized, unless such a sale would significantly alter the rate of depletion and
depreciation.

Site restoration

The Company has adopted CICA Handbook Section 3110 “Asset Retirement Obligations”. This
standard focuses on the recognition and measurement of liabilities related to legal obligations
associated with the retirement of property, plant and equipment. Under this standard, these
obligations are initially measured at fair value and subsequently adjusted for any changes
resulting from the passage of time and revisions to either the timing or the amount of the original
estimate of undiscounted cash flows. The asset retirement cost is to be capitalized to the related
asset and amortized into earnings over time. Under this section, the Company has recognized
estimated future net costs of well abandonment and site restoration, including removal of
production facilities at the end of their useful life of $10,494 (2005 - $10,494).

Revenue recognition

Revenue from oil and gas operations is recognized in the accounts when oil and natural gas are
shipped, title passes and collection of the sale is reasonably assured.
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PORTRUSH PETROLEUM CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

DECEMBER 31, 2006

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd...)

Foreign currency translation

The Company’'s subsidiary is an integrated foreign operation and is translated into Canadian
dollars using the temporal method. Monetary items are translated at the exchange rate in effect at
the balance sheet date and non-monetary items are translated at historical exchange rates.
Revenue and expense items are translated at the average exchange rate for the period.
Translation gains and losses are reflected in the loss for the year.

Stock-based compensation

The Company uses the fair value-based method for stock-based compensation and therefore all
awards to employees and non-employees will be recorded at fair value on the date of the grant
and expensed over the period of vesting. The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing
model to estimate the fair value of each stock option at the date of grant. Any consideration paid
by the option holders to purchase shares is credited to capital stock.

Income taxes

The Company follows the asset/liability method of accounting for income taxes. Future income
tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the differences between the tax basis of assets
and liabilities and those reported in the financial statements. The future tax assets or liabilities are
calculated using the tax rates for the periods in which the differences are expected to be settled.
Future tax assets are recognized to the extent that they are considered more likely than not to be
realized.

Loss per share

The Company uses the treasury stock method to compute the dilutive effect of options, warrants
and similar instruments. Under this method the dilutive effect on earnings per share is recognized
on the use of the proceeds that could be obtained upon exercise of options, warrants and similar
instruments. It assumes that the proceeds would be used to purchase common shares at the
average market price during the year. For loss per share the dilutive effect has not been
computed as it proved to be anti-dilutive. At December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the total number
of potentially dilutive shares excluded from loss per share is 5,880,000, 5,362,500, 4,644,559
respectively.

Loss per share is calculated using the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the
year.

Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year's

presentation.
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PORTRUSH PETROLEUM CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

DECEMBER 31, 2006

3. OIL AND GAS PROPERTIES

The Company entered into agreements to acquire interests in
follows:

various oil and gas properties as

2006 2005

Oil and gas properties:
U.S.A., proved $ 2,879,005 $ 2,708,708
Canada, unproved 109,616 104,464
2,988,621 2,813,172
Less: Accumulated depletion (1,640,967)  (1,241,931)
$ 1347654 $ 1,571,241

At December 31, 2006, the oil and gas properties include $109,616 (2005 - $104,464) relating to
unproved properties that have been excluded from the depletion calculation.

Ontario prospects, Canada

The Company entered into an agreement to acquire a 5% working interest in a prospect located in
Ontario, Canada in exchange for funding 50% of the project costs by paying US$120,000. The
Company will receive a payout of all costs incurred plus a 5% working interest in the prospect.
During fiscal 2006, the Company incurred pre-acquisition costs of $22,009 on an additional

prospect located in Ontario, Canada.

Michigan, U.S.A.

The Company has a 22.5% working interest in a prospect located in Michigan, U.S.A.

Texas, U.S.A.

The Company acquired a 10% working interest in certain oil and gas leases located in the Refugio
and Goliad Counties, Texas, U.S.A. As consideration for its interest, the Company made staged

payments totaling US$1,044,000.

The full cost ceiling test results as of December 31, 2006 resulted in no impairment of evaluated
oil and gas properties. The future prices used in the December 31, 2006 ceiling test are as

follows:
Natural Gas Oill
(Cdn $/Mmbtu) (Cdn $/Bbl)
2007 $ 8.56 $
75.74
2008 9.16 73.41
2009 8.97 69.92
2010 8.74 65.84
2011 8.97 61.76
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4, CAPITAL STOCK AND CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS
Number Capital Contributed
of Shares Stock Surplus
Authorized
100,000,000 common voting shares, no par value
Issued and outstanding:

Balance, December 31, 2003 26,693,667 $ 10,534,248 $ 270,552
Exercise of options 1,050,000 110,000 -
Exercise of warrants 7,680,000 1,090,200 -
Finders’ fees 318,750 63,750 -
Private placements 4,600,000 920,000 -
Contributed surplus on exercise of warrants and - 216,352 (216,352)

options
Stock-based compensation - - 298,483
Share issuance costs - (80,389) -

Balance, December 31, 2004 40,342,417 12,854,161 352,683
Exercise of options 1,194,500 179,175 -
Private placement 2,000,000 300,000 -
Escrow shares cancelled (103,125) (31,556) 31,556
Contributed surplus on exercise of options - 121,685 (121,685)
Stock-based compensation - - 75,193
Share issuance costs - (24,942) -

Balance, December 31, 2005 43,433,792 13,398,523 337,747
Exercise of options 625,000 93,750 -
Stock-based compensation - - 205,385
Contributed surplus on exercise of stock options - 56,164 (56,164)

44,058,792 13,548,437 486,968
Purchased for cancellation (300,000) (40,000) -
Balance, December 31, 2006 43,758,792 $ 13,508,437 $ 486,968
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4,

CAPITAL STOCK AND CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS (cont'd...)
During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company issued the following common shares:

i) 625,000 common shares pursuant to the exercise of stock options for gross proceeds of
$93,750.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company issued the following common shares:
i) 1,194,500 common shares pursuant to the exercise of stock options for proceed of $179,175.

i) In September 2005, the Company issued 2,000,000 units at $0.15 per unit for gross proceeds
of $300,000. Each unit consisted of one common share and one share purchase warrant
exercisable at $0.15 per share expiring September 14, 2007. The Company paid a finder’s fee
and other issuance costs of $24,942.

On December 7, 2005, the Company cancelled 103,125 common shares that were held in
€SCrow.

During the year-ended December 31, 2004 the Company issued the following common shares:

i) In June 2004, the Company issued 3,100,000 units at $0.20 per unit for total proceeds of
$620,000. Each unit consisted of one common share and one non-transferable share
purchase warrant. A total of eight warrants entitle the holder to acquire one additional
common share for $0.20 until June 2, 2006. The Company issued 225,000 common shares at
a value of $45,000 as a finder’s fee.

i) In August 2004, the Company issued 1,500,000 shares at $0.20 per share for total proceeds
of $300,000. The Company issued 93,750 common shares at a value of $18,750 as a finder's
fee.

i) Issued 7,680,000 common shares pursuant to the exercise of warrants for proceeds of
$1,090,200 of which $146,950 was received during the year ended December 31, 2003. The
Company also issued 1,050,000 common shares pursuant to the exercise of stock options for
proceeds of $110,000.

Common shares returned to treasury

On November 14, 2006, the Company filed a notice of intention to undertake a normal course
issuer bid with the British Columbia Securities Commission for up to 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital (2,200,000 common shares) over a 12 month period. The issuer bid was approved
by the TSX Venture Exchange. As at December 31, 2006, the Company had purchased 300,000
common shares for $40,000 to return to treasury. Subsequent to December 31, 2006 these
shares were cancelled.

Stock options

The Company has a stock option plan whereby, from time to time, at the discretion of the Board of
Directors, stock options are granted to directors, officers and certain consultants enabling them to
acquire up to 10% of the issued and outstanding common stock of the Company. The exercise
price of each option is based on the market price of the Company’'s common stock at the
date of the grant less an applicable discount. The options can be granted for a maximum term of
5 years and vest at the discretion of the Board of Directors.
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4, CAPITAL STOCK AND CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS (contd...)

Stock options (cont'd...)

The following incentive stock options and share purchase warrants were outstanding at December

31, 2006:
Number Exercise
of Shares Price Expiry Date
250,000 $ 0.15 January 12, 2007
Options
305,000 0.15 April 27, 2007
100,000 0.15 August 11, 2007
600,000 0.15 September 1, 2007
150,000 0.15 December 15, 2007
300,000 0.18 June 8, 2008
1,600,000 0.15 April 10, 2009
300,000 0.15 April 25, 2009
175,000 0.15 October 31, 2009
100,000 0.15 November 30, 2009
2,000,000 0.15 September 14, 2007
Warrants

Warrants and stock option transactions are summarized as follows:

Warrants Stock Options

Weighted Weighted

Average Average

Exercise Exercise

Number Price Number Price
Outstanding, December 31, 2003 8,737,059 $ 0.15 950,000 $ 0.10
Granted 387,500 0.20 3,300,000 0.15
Exercised (7,680,000) 0.14 (1,050,000) 0.10
Expired/cancelled - - - -
Outstanding, December 31, 2004 1,444,559 0.23 3,200,000 0.15
Granted 2,000,000 0.15 1,349,500 0.15
Exercised - (1,194,500) 0.15
Expired/cancelled (1,057,059) 0.12 (380,000) 0.15
Outstanding, December 31, 2005 2,387,500 0.16 2,975,000 0.15
Granted - - 2,725,000 0.15
Exercised - - (625,000) 0.15
Expired/cancelled (387,500) 0.20 (1,195,000) 0.15
Outstanding, December 31, 2006 2,000,000 $ 0.15 3,880,000 $ 0.15
Number currently exercisable 2,000,000 $ 0.15 3,805,000 $ 0.15
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4, CAPITAL STOCK AND CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS (cont'd...)
Stock-based compensation
During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company granted 2,725,000 (2005 — 1,349,500;
2004 - 3,300,000) stock options to directors and consultants at a weighted average fair value of
$0.08 (2005 - $0.06; 2004 - $0.09) per option. As at December 31, 2006, 2,650,000 of these
options had vested with an attributed stock-based compensation expense of $205,385 (2005 -
$75,193; 2004 - $298,483) credited to contributed surplus. The compensation recognized was
calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.
The following weighted average assumptions were used in the valuation of stock options granted:
2006 2005 2004
Risk-free interest rate 4.1% 3.4% 2.4%
Expected life of options 1.4 years 2 years 2 years
Annualized volatility 93% 81% 160%
Dividend rate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
5. SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO CASH FLOWS
2006 2005 2004
Cash paid during the year for interest $ - 8 - $ -
Cash paid during the year for income taxes $ - 3 - $ -

During the year ended December 31, 2006 the Company incurred $1,919 in recoveries through
receivables.

Significant non-cash transactions during the year ended December 31, 2005 included:
a) The accrual of future site restoration costs of $4,021.
b) The cancellation of 103,125 escrow shares with a value of $31,556.

The significant non-cash transactions during the year ended December 31, 2004 were the
issuance of 318,750 common shares valued at $63,750 for finders’ fees on private placements.
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6. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company paid or accrued management fees of $80,875 (2005 - $72,000; 2004 - $72,000) to
a director of which, $20,527 is included in prepaid expenses as at December 31, 2006 (December

31, 2005 — $Nil)

Amounts due to related parties are non-interest bearing, unsecured and have no specific terms of
repayment.

Related party transactions are in the normal course of operations, occurring on terms and

conditions that are similar to those of transactions with unrelated parties and, therefore, are
measured at the exchange amount.

7. INCOME TAXES

A reconciliation of current income taxes at statutory rates with the reported taxes is as follows:

2006 2005 2004
Loss for the year $ (435,117) $ (160,248) $ (766,320)
Expected income taxes (recovery) $ (157,870) $ (54,794) $ (272,810)
Non-deductible items for income tax purposes 209,857 56,503 43,410
Other items deductible for income tax purposes (224,401) (108,310) (56,285)
Unrecognized benefits of non-capital losses 172,414 106,601 285,685
Actual income tax recovery $ - $ - $ -

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant components of future income
tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

2006 2005
Future income tax assets:

Oil and gas properties $ 803,779 $ 640,187
Mineral property and related exploration expenditures 83,016 91,371
Financing fees 18,116 32,959
Operating losses available for future periods 702,674 658,197
1,607,585 1,422,714
Valuation allowance (1,607,585) (1,422,714)

Net future income tax asset $ - % -
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10.

11.

INCOME TAXES (cont'd.....)

The Company has incurred operating losses of approximately $2,140,000 in Canada which, if
unutilized, will expire through 2026. Subject to certain restrictions, the Company also has capital
losses and resource exploration expenditures available to reduce taxable income of future years.
Future tax benefits which may arise as a result of these losses and resource deductions have not
been recognized in these financial statements, as their realization is not judged likely to occur.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

All of the Company's operations are in the oil and gas industry and 100% of the revenues have been
generated in the U.S.A.

The total amount of capital assets attributable to Canada is $109,616 (2005 - $104,464) and the total
amount of capital assets attributable to the U.S.A. is $1,238,038 (2005 - $1,466,777).

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company's financial instruments consist of cash, receivables, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities and due to related parties. Unless otherwise noted, it is management's opinion that the
Company is not exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risks arising from these financial
instruments. The fair value of these financial instruments approximates their carrying value,
unless otherwise noted.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Subsequent to December 31, 2006, the Company purchased an additional 50,000 of its own
common shares for $6,375.

DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CANADIAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY ACCEPTED
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in Canada (“Canadian GAAP”). Material variations in the
accounting principles, practices and methods used in preparing these consolidated financial
statements from principles, practices and methods accepted in the United States (“United States
GAAP”) are described and quantified below.
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11.

DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CANADIAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY ACCEPTED
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES (contd...)

Consolidated financial statement balances under United States GAAP

2006 2005
Consolidated balance sheets
Total assets under Canadian GAAP and United States GAAP $ 1,611,376 $ 1,834,436
Total liabilities under Canadian GAAP and United States GAAP $ 69,110 $ 116,188

Capital stock, common shares returned to treasury and contributed 13,995,405 13,736,270

surplus
under Canadian GAAP
Cumulative compensation expense on granting of stock options 759,296 759,296
Capital stock, common shares returned to treasury and contributed
surplus
under United States GAAP 14,754,701 14,495,566
Deficit under Canadian GAAP (12,453,139) (12,018,022)
Cumulative compensation expense on granting of stock options (759,296) (759,296)
Deficit under United States GAAP (13,212,435) (12,777,318)
Total shareholders' equity under United States GAAP 1,542,266 1,718,248
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity under United States GAAP $ 1,611,376 $ 1,834,436

The impact of the differences between Canadian GAAP and United States GAAP do not materially
affect the consolidated statements of operations and cash flows.

Oil and gas properties

Under both United States and Canadian GAAP, property, plant and equipment must be assessed
for potential impairment.

Under Canadian GAAP, a ceiling test is applied to ensure that capitalized costs for oil and gas
properties and equipment do not exceed the sum of estimated undiscounted, future net revenues
from proven reserves less the cost incurred or estimated to develop those reserves, interest and
general and administration costs, and an estimate for restoration costs and applicable taxes.
Effective January 1, 2004, the CICA implemented a new pronouncement on impairment of long-
lived assets, which required the impairment loss as a result of the ceiling test to be measured as
the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the expected future cash flows
discounted using a risk free interest rate.
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11.

DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CANADIAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY ACCEPTED
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES (cont'd...)

Oil and gas properties (cont'd...)

Under United States GAAP, costs accumulated in each cost center are limited to an amount equal
to the present value, discounted at 10%, of the estimated future net operating revenues from
proved reserves, net of restoration costs and income taxes. Under United States GAAP an
additional ceiling test write-down was not required as at December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.

Stock-based compensation

Under both United States and Canadian GAAP, the Company accounts for stock based
compensation as disclosed in Note 2. Accordingly, there is no difference between Canadian
GAAP and United States GAAP on the accounting for stock-based compensation for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.

For the year ended December 31, 2002 and prior, the Company elected to account for stock-
based compensation using Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 “Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees”. Accordingly, compensation cost for stock options was measured as the
excess, if any, of the quoted market price of the Company’s stock at the date of grant over the
option price.

Loss per share

Under both Canadian GAAP and United States GAAP basic loss per share is calculated using the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year.

Under United States GAAP, the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
excludes any shares that remain in escrow, but may be earned out based on the Company
incurring a certain amount of exploration and development expenditures. The weighted average
number of shares outstanding under United States GAAP for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004 was 43,951,326, 41,476,215 and 33,755,501, respectively. Accordingly, the
loss per share for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $(0.01), $(0.00) and
$(0.02), respectively.

Asset retirement obligations

Under United States GAAP, Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143, “Accounting
for Asset Retirement Obligations” requires companies to record the fair value of the liability for
closure and removal costs associated with the legal obligations upon retirement or removal of any
tangible long-lived assets. Under this standard, the initial recognition of the liability is capitalized
as part of the asset cost and depreciated over its estimated useful life.

Under Canadian GAAP, the Company was required to record asset retirement obligations as at
December 31, 2005 for estimated future net costs of well abandonment and site restoration
including removal of production facilities at the end of their useful life of $10,494 (2005 - $10,494).
New accounting and disclosure standards were introduced under Canadian GAAP (Note 2) and
adopted by the Company effective January 1, 2003. Accordingly, there is no difference between
Canadian GAAP and United States GAAP as at December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.
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11.

DIFFERENCES BETWEEN CANADIAN AND UNITED STATES GENERALLY ACCEPTED
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES (cont'd...)

Recent accounting pronouncements

In July 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”. FIN 48
clarifies the accounting and reporting for uncertainties in income tax law. FIN 48 prescribes a
comprehensive model for the financial statement recognition, measurement, presentation, and
disclosure of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in income tax returns. FIN 48
is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company is currently in the
process of evaluating the impact of FIN 48 on the financial position and results of operations of
the Company.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements”. SFAS No. 157
establishes a framework for measuring the fair value of assets and liabilities. This framework is
intended to provide increased consistency in how fair value determinations are made under
various existing accounting standards which permit, or in some cases require, estimates of fair
market value. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and
interim periods within those fiscal years. Earlier application is encouraged, provided that the
reporting entity has not yet issued financial statements for that fiscal year, including any financial
statements for an interim period within that fiscal year. The Company is currently in the process
of evaluating the impact of SFAS 157 on the financial position and results of operations of the
Company.

The adoption of these new pronouncements is not expected to have a material effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.
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SI GNATURE PAGE

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 12g of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, the Registrant certifies that it neets all of the requirenents for
filing on Form 20-F and has duly caused this Annual Report to be signed on its
behal f by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Portrush Petrol eum Cor poration; SEC #000-27768
Regi st rant

June 26, 2007 By s/s Martin Cotter

Dat e Martin Cotter, President/Director
June 26, 2007 By s/s Neal Iverson

Dat e Neal |verson, Director
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Exhibit 12.1

Martin Cotter, Chief Executive Oficer and Chief Financial Oficer,
certify that:

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 20-F of
Portrush Petrol eum Corp.

Based on nmy know edge, this report does not contain any untrue statenent
of a material fact or onit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statenents made, in light of the circunstances under which such statenents
were made, not msleading with respect to the period covered by this
Annual Report;

Based on nmy know edge, the financial statements, and other financi al
information included in this report, fairly present in all materia
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash fl ows
of the conpany as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The conpany’s other certifying officer(s) and | are responsible for

est abl i shing and mai ntaining disclosure controls and procedures

(as defined in Exchange Act Rul es 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the conpany

and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such
di scl osure control s and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
conpany, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
whi ch this report is being prepared

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the conmpany’s disclosure controls and
procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
ef fectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such eval uation; and

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in the conpany’'s internal contro
over financial reporting that occurred during the period covered by the
Annual Report that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the conpany’s internal control over financia
reporting; and

The conpany’s other certifying officer(s) and | have discl osed, based on
our nost recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the conpany’s auditors and the audit commttee of the conmpany’s board of
directors (or persons perform ng the equival ent functions):

(a) Al significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or
operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the conpany’s ability to record
process, sumrarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves managenent or ot her
enpl oyees who have a significant role in the conpany’s internal contro
over financial reporting.

Dat e: June 26, 2007

/s/ Martin Cotter

Martin Cotter, Chief Executive Oficer and Chief Financial Oficer
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EXH BIT 13.1

Certification of Chief Executive Oficer
Pursuant to 18 U. S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxl ey Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Portrush Petroleum Corporation, a
conpany organi zed under the British Col unmbia Corporations Act (the “Conpany”)
on Form 20-F as filed with the Securities and Exchange Comm ssion on the date
her eof (the “Report”), t he under si gned, Martin P. Cotter,
President/CEQ Director of the Conpany, certifies, pursuant to 18 U S.C (95
1350, as adopted pursuant to (S) 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully conmplies with the requirenents of section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and result of operations
of the Conpany.

/s/ Martin P. Cotter
Martin P. Cotter, President/CEQ CFQ Director

Dat e: June 26, 2007
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